COMPENSATION FOR WRONGFULLY CONVICTED
AND IMPRISONED PERSONS

The following guidelines include a rationale for compensation
and criteria for both eligibility and quantum of
compensation. Such guidelines form the basis of a national
standard to be applied in instances in which the question of
compensation arises.

A. RATIONALE

Despite the many safeguards in Canada's criminal
justice system, innocent persons are occasionally
convicted and imprisoned. Recently three cases
(Marshall, Truscott, and Fox) have focussed public
attention on the issue of compensation for those
persons that have been wrongfully convicted and
imprisoned. 1In appropriate cases, compensation
should be awarded in an effort to relieve the
consequences of wrongful conviction and imprisonment.

B. GUIDELINES FOR ELIGIBILITY TO APPLY FOR COMPENSATION

The following are prerequisites for eligibility for
compensation:

1) The wrongful conviction must have resulted in
imprisonment, all or part of which has been served.

2) Compensation should only be available to the

actual person who has been wrongfully convicted and
imprisoned.

3) Compensation should only be available to an
individual who has been wrongfully convicted and
imprisoned as a result of a Criminal Code or other
federal penal offence.

4) As a condition precedent to compensation, there
must be a free pardon granted under Section 683(2) of
the Criminal Code or a verdict of acquittal entered
by an Appellate Court pursuant to a referral made by
the Minister of Justice under Section 617 (b).

5. Eligibility for compensation would only arise
when Sections 617 and 683 were exercised in
circumstances where all available appeal remedies
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have been exhausted and where a new or newly
discovered fact has emerged, tending to show that
there has been a miscarriage of justice.

As compensation should only be granted to those
persons who did not commit the crime for which they
were convicted, (as opposed to persons who are found
not guilty) a further criteria would require:

"a) If a pardon is granted under Section
683, a statement on the face of the pardon
based on an investigation, that the
individual did not commit the offence: or

b) If a reference is made by the
Minister of Justice under Section
617(b), a statement by the Appellate
Court, in response to a question
asked by the Minister of Justice
pursuant to Section 617(c), to the
effect that the person did not commit
the offence.

It should be noted that Sections 617 and 683 may not
be available in all cases in which an individual has
been convicted of an offence which he did not commit,
for example, where an individual had been granted an
extension of time to appeal and a verdict of
acquittal has been entered by an Appellate Court. 1In
such a case, a Provincial Attorney General could make
a determination that the individual be eligible for
compensation, based on an investigation which has
determined that the individual did not commit the
offence.

C. PROCEDURE

When an individual meets the eligibility criteria,
the Provincial or Federal Minister Responsible for
Criminal Justice will undertake to have appointed,
either a judicial or administrative inquiry to
examine the matter of compensation in accordance

with the considerations set out below. The provincial
or federal governments would undertake to act on the
report submitted by the Commission of Inquiry.

CONFIDENTTIAL
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D. CONSIDERATIONS FOR DETERMINING QUANTUM

The quantum of compensation shall be determined
having regard to the following considerations:

3 Non-pecuniary losses

a) Loss of liberty and the physical
and mental harshness and indignities
of incarceration;

b) Loss of reputation which would take into
account a consideration of any previous
criminal record;

c) Loss or interruption of family or other
personal relationships.

Compensation for non-pecuniary losses should not
exceed $100,000.

25 Pecuniary Losses

a) Loss of livelihood, including
loss of earnings, with adjustments
for income tax and for benefits
received while incarcerated;

b) Loss of future earning
abilities;

c) Loss of property or other
consequential financial losses
resulting from incarceration.

In assessing the above mentioned amounts, the
inquiring body must take into account the following
factors:

a) Blameworthy conduct or other acts
on the part of the applicant which
contributed to the wrongful
conviction;

CONFPIDENTIAL
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b) Due diligence on the part of the claimant
in pursuing his remedies.

3. Costs to the Applicant

Reasonable costs incurred by the applicant in

obtaining a pardon or verdict of acquittal should be
included in the award for compensation.

CONFIDENTTIAL




Province of Nova Scotia

Position Description

Position: Director (Criminal)
Incumbent: Gordon S. Gale, Q.C.
Department: Attorney General

Division: Legal Services 90;{/'

Location: Halifax
Date: November, 1985

General Accountability

This position is accountable for providing
advice and assistance and ensuring consistency, through
acquired expertise, in all aspects of the criminal justice
system, directing and supervising criminal appeals,
formulating policy in all matters related to policing and
acting as inter-governmental liaison in all matters related
to criminal law.

Structure

This position is one of four reporting to
the Executive Director (Legal Services). The others are
Director (Civil Litigation), Director (Solicitor Services),
and Director (Prosecutions).

There are three positions reporting to the
Director (Criminal). These are Senior Solicitor (Young
Of fenders Act) who also reports to the Director
(Prosecutions) in regard to Young Offenders Act prosecutions;
Solicitor, of which there are four; Prosecuting Officer,
of which there are seventeen prosecuting officers and
forty-eight assistant prosecuting officers, who report
only in regard to criminal appeals.

Nature and Scope

The Attorney General is responsible for the
administration of justice within the Province and included
in this is the criminal Jjustice system. The Director
(Criminal) is the position responsible for ensuring the
proper application of the criminal law. This involves
ensuring uniformity of application of criminal law through
appeal action, provision of advice on criminal 1law and




enforcement policy to police agencies, provision of advice
to prosecutors on appeal requests, and advice to the Attorney
General on the effect of proposed or actual legislation
on the criminal law.

Due to the advent of the Charter of Rights
the number and complexity of criminal appeals has increased
requiring complex examination of cases to be considered
for appeal to ensure that the possible impact of decisions
is properly presented to the Courts. This requires greater
direction and supervision of the solicitors presenting
the appeals.

The functions of the Director (Criminal) are
the formulation of policy to ensure consistency in
enforcement. Through accumulated expertise advising and
directing police in the investigation of specific cases
and advising prosecutors on matters of criminal law. Through
an overview of crime to ensure that investigatorial resources
are used to best advantage. By reason of expertise, forming
part of the preovincial delegation to national meetings
on justice to advise the Attorney General and Deputy on
matters relating to criminal law and policing and to assist
at implementing decisions made at such meetings. Negotiation
with R.C.M.P. on contractual matters.

The Director (Criminal) is responsible for
liaison with the Nova Scotia Police Commission and
considering its requests to the Attorney General for the
purpose of formulating policy and legislative considerations
arising therefrom. In addition, the Director (Criminal)
is responsible for liaison with the Nova Scotia Hospital
and the Lieutenant Governor's Warrant Review Board to
determine the disposition of persons remanded by Courts
or placed on Lieutenant Governor's Warrants. The position
is also responsible for pardons and transfer of probation.

The Director (Criminal) 1is responsible for
specific matters assigned by the Deputy Attorney General
including Nova Scotia Hospital Act, Fatality 1Inquiries
Act, Horse Racing Commission, Liquor Control Act, Liquor
License Board, Lottery Act and Gun Clubs.

Major challenges of this position are:

Analysis of criminal law, to respond to
or make recommendations, on charges.

Analysis of law enforcement problems so
that changes can be implemented in particular
trouble areas consistent with ensuring uniformity
of response on a province wide basis.




The Director (Criminal) functions without
supervision and consults with the Executive Director of
Legal Services where policy formulation would require the
approval of the Attorney General.

There is need for constant contact with the
Director (Prosecutions) to ensure that the both directorates
act in concert.

There are frequent contacts with other areas
of the Department in the course of management of the unit
with the Director, Administrative Services, on personnel
and budget matters, the Director, Court and Registry
Services, concerning utilization of courts and court
officials, the Director, Correctional Services in providing
legal advice. To a lesser extent there is contact with
the Director (Solicitor Services) and the Director (Civil
Litigation) over matters which have arisen within departments
that require police investigations but result in civil
action being required rather than criminal action. Also,
because this position is that of chief advisor on criminal
law and enforcement frequent contact is had with the Attorney
General and his Deputy.

Frequent contact is made with other provincial
departments at the deputy minister and director levels
in regard to violations of statutes administered by those
departments. Nationally, there is frequent contact with
deputy ministers and directors in justice departments of
other provisions and the federal government for the purpose
of exchange of information and procedures, developing
positions on criminal 1law and policing, and also for
discussion of specific cases which involve this or other
jurisdictions.

Outside of government there is frequent contact
by judges of all levels of courts seeking assistance and
information on various facets of criminal law. Also, there
are frequent contacts with the practising bar in relation
to criminal matters.

The Director (Criminal) is a member of the
following job related organizations:

- Uniform Law Conference, Criminal Section,
the purpose of which is to recommend amendments
to the criminal law and to review criminal law
proposals made by the federal justice authorities.

- Criminal law consultation committee of
the Law Reform Commission of Canada the purpose
of which is to review and assist in that
Commission's reports to Parliament.



- Atlantic Police/Academy Advisory Council
the purpose of which is to offer advice and review
their training programs and to keep the Attorney
General apprised of its activities.

- Representative of the Deputy Attorney

General on the Nova Scotia Chiefs of Police
Association.

Dimensions

Head office staff - Four Solicitors
Budgets - R.C.M.P. 22,000,000

Indirect responsibility for 24 municipal
police comprising 750 police officers.

Specific Accountabilities

Ensure that amendments and changes to criminal
law are consistent with provincial 1laws and objectives
and are responsive to criminal problems in the Province.

Through formulation of policy to ensure
consistency and effectiveness in the enforcement of criminal
law.

Through the application of expertise in criminal
law to advise police and prosecutors on specific
investigations.

By reason of expertise in criminal law and
familiarity with government to act as a resource person
on criminal and police matters to other levels of government,
the courts, police and prosecutors.

To act as liaison between the Department and
enforcement agencies to formulate new policies for
enforcement and to act as legal advisor to agencies of
government which have interaction between enforcement and
criminal law matters.

Approved by:

Date Aﬁ.ﬂ[&f
-
Deputy Ministepﬁ’% Date /éo" {/KS
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8. DI OR_(CRIMINAL

Responsibility for all mattars related to tha Criminal Cadi} Prosaciutions
generally and all criminal appeals.

Regponeibility for all satters related te R.C.M.Poliocey Municipal Police)
Police investigations and reports) Nova Bootia Police Commission, Helland
College; Promecuting Officers; Review Board under Bection 547 of C.C.;
Pardons and Transfers of Probation.

Responsibility for all matters related to N. S, Commigsion on Drug
Dependency.

A. MACDONALD, DIRECTOR OF ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES AND
INSPECTOR OF LEGAL AND REGISTRY OFFICES

2

3,

5.

Responsibility for all Departmental administrative matters.

Responsibility for all matters related to non-legal personnel including
compliance with Civil Service Commission directives and matters related
to Order in Council appointments. T

Responsibility for all matters related to Justices of the Peace, Provincial
Magistrate's Court and all employees assigned to Provincial Magistrate's
Court, County Court and Suprema Court; all Lagal and Ragiatyry Offices and
employees tharaofs all court reparting services and pergonnel and all
departmental statistics.

Raspensibility for all Departmental accounting, preparation of estimatey,
budgetary matters generally, monitoring expenditures, departmental
inspaction and audite.

Responsibility for all accounting matters ralated to Federal-Trovincial
Agreements affecting the Department, Nova Scotia Legal Ald; Malntenance
Orders.

JAMES L. CRANE, DIRECTOR OF PROBATION AND

INSPECICR OF PENAL INSTITUTIONS

1.

3.

Responaibility for Adult Probation Services and Coxrectional Sexvices

~generally.

Responsibility as Inspector of Penal Institutions,

Remponsibility for such programs, projects, planning or consultative
committees involved in the criminal justice system az shall be approved
by the Deputy,

10

Rasponsibllity for all legal matqpra related to native people (Indians). /QQIK;
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Dear Mr. Gale:

The Department of Justice, Canada, has received a proposal
from the Union of Nova Scotia Indians for research to be
conducted on the 1eq“1 needs of native people in selected
sites in the province of Nova Scotia. The proposed study
would include a focus on the problems and needs of native
adults and young offenders, victims and witnesses in their
encounter with the justice system involving criminal, civil
and family matters.

The request was reviewed by Department of Justice personnel
and it is believed that the results of such a study would
assist the department in determining and addressing access

to justice issues that _affect native peoples 1in _Canada. It

is hoped that the province of Nova Scotia would agree to
the usefulness of the proposed research.

Enclosed for your review and comments are the proposal from
the Union of Nova Scotia Indians, a copy of the letter that
has been sent to the Union of Nova Scotia Indians in
response to their proposal, and background material and the
proposed study draft terms of reference that have been
prepared by the Programs and Research Section of the
Department of Justice. If there is agreement to proceed
with the study, we would propose that it would occur in two
phases. The first phase would be essentially a feasibility

_study to determlne what are the perceived special legal

‘needs of natives in Nova S5Scotia and how they can best be

00.2

e
] -

-
s T
=

-

1

3

_-' 5 R

Canad"'



————

assessed. In other words, the feasibility study would
identify, clarify and priorize research issues, determine
the availability and quality of information to address
these issues, and if a legal needs research study is
feasible, propose a research design that would include a
budget and time frame. Based on the findings of the first
phase, the second phase, if mutually agreed upon, would
involve a study of the legal needs of native nenple in Mova
Scotia.

If there is interest in this study by your department,
would you please_identify a person who could meet to
further discuss the proposed research with representatives
from this department and the Union of Nova Scotia Indians.
It is estimated that the first phase of the research would
require a maximum of twenty weeks. All costs of the
research would be borne by this department.

The contact person at the Department of Justice is
Ms. Patricia Begin. Ms. Begin can be reached at
(613) 993-6645.

In advance, thank you for your consideration of this
project.

Sincerely,

A ——
/@?

D.C. Prefontaine, Q.C.
Assistant Deputy Minister
Policy, Programs and Research Branch

Encl.



ISSUE

To determine the feasibility of conducting research on the legal
needs of native people in selected sites in the pProvince of Nova
Scotia with a view to identify and priorize research issues
related to both the legal needs and problems aboriginal people
face in their contact with the justice system and to determine
the availability, relevance, sources and quality of data to
address the issues. The study would include a focus on the
problems and needs of native adult and young offenders, victims
and witnesses.

BACKGROUND

Since the passage of the Young Offenders Act, the Department in
cooperation with provincial officials and Native organizations,
has conducted legal needs assessment studies of Native youths in
Quebec and Labrador with a focus on the role the Native
courtworker program could play in these provinces in meeting the
legal needs of native young offenders (currently the federal-
provincial agreements on the Native Courtworker program cover
services for native adults only). A somewhat similar, albeit
broader, study has also been conducted in New Brunswick, (where
no Native Courtworker program presently exists), which examined
the legal needs of Native adult and youth offenders as well as
victims and witnesses in their encounter with the justice system
Given the dearth of quantitative information on native
involvement with the justice system in Canada (ethnicity is not
part of national statistics), these studies were basically
exploratory and qualitative in their approach. Study findings
mainly identify and detail legal needs articulated by key actors
from native communities and agencies and justice system
personnel. These findings have contributed to exploring the
pPhenomena of native legal needs and impediments to access to
justice.

Generally, the information derived from the research has pointed
to three related areas in which native young offenders (Quebec
and Labrador) and adult and young offenders, victims and
witnesses (New Brunswick) experience unmet needs - public legal
education, access to legal services, and encounters with the
criminal justice system. It was found that among native people
there tends to be lack of awareness of law, legal rights and
obligations; a lack of understanding of court procedures and the
justice system; a lack of knowledge about available legal
services; problems in availability, accessibility and utilization
of services; limited access to duty counsel and delivery of legal
aid; problems with the timing for circuit court cases and legal



counsel; a disproportionately high rate of quilty pleas and
incarceration; and linguistic and cultural barriers to
unproblematic interaction with justice personnel including legal
aid and the justice process in general. Absent from these
studies are empirically confirmed phenomena or "hard
conclusions".

STATUS

The Chiefs of Nova Seotia have requested that the Department
conduct a comprehensive needs assessment study on "current public
legal issues confronting both the urban and reserve Indians of
Nova Scotia and to establish baseline data on native people and
the law in Nova Scotia". The province of Nova Scotia has been
without a Native Courtworker program since 1981. According to
the Union of Nova Scotia Indians, this has resulted in the
absence of native oriented public legal education services
covering a range of legal information needs of victims,
witnesses and offenders with no alternative program to deliver
native oriented legal services to aboriginal peoples in conflict
with the law living on and off reserves in Nova Scotia.

RECOMMENDATION

If such a study is supported by both levels of government and
native organizations in Nova Scotia, it is recommended that as a
first step toward launching a needs assessment study in Nova
Scotia, a feasibility study be conducted. From the previously
conducted native legal needs studies, much useful, albeit non-
random and unsystematic, descriptive information has been
collected. What has been learned can be applied to the
formulation and testing of hypotheses and to determine if more
rigourous research methods would improve data quality and
representativeness as well as the generalizability of study
findings thereby allowing for more definitive investigation and
conclusions respecting native legal needs, problems and improved
services and possibly new program options. 1In other words, a
feasibility study could clarify relevant issues and concepts,
establish reseach priorities, determine data collection
capabilities and address the costs, strengths and weaknesses of
conducting in-depth native legal needs research in Nova Scotia.
It could then be used as a tool, in addition to consultations
with a research steering committee, to inform decision-making
regarding the value of conducting this research in Nova Scotia.
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Purpose:

To determine the feasibility of conducting research on the legal
needs of native people in selected sites in the province of Nova
Scotia with a view to identify and priorize research issues
related to both the legal needs and problems aboriginal people
face in their contact with the justice system involving criminal,
civil and family matters and to determine the availability,
relevance, sources and quality of data to address the issues.
The study shall include a focus on the problems and needs of
native adult and young offenders, victims and witnesses. The
study shall propose a study design and cost estimate.

Essential Tasks:

1. Review and synthesize study findings from completed and
relevant research with a view to identifying themes and issues.
Meet with the advisory committee to discuss research issues and
priorities and to review and finalize the work plan for the
feasibility study.

2. Contact Native organizations and agencies (on-reserve, off-
reserve, urban centres) to ascertain their interest and
commitment regarding the feasibility and (the possible)
subsequent study.

3. Based on (2), conduct on-site visits to select reserves, urban
and rural centres to determine concerns regarding Native legal
needs and problems encountered by Natives in their contact with
the justice system as perceived by them, recommended priority
research issues, available data and quality.

4. Consult with local Crown counsel, police, corrections and
justice system officials regarding the study, determine
recommended priority issues of importance for study, ascertain
their cooperation regarding subsequent data collection, and
available data and quality.

5. Consult with relevant social service networks to obtain
cooperation and support, identify issues recommended for study,
and available data and quality. -

6. Prepare a progress report (1) based on the consultations
outlined in (1), (2) and (3) indicating:

- issues identified by steering committee and Native
organizations; :

- the sites selected for the research,
representativeness, their relevant characteristics, the
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rationale for selection, level of local support; .
- priority issues, relevant hypotheses for investigation:
- the nature of the available information related to
Native involvement with the justice system and their
legal needs; proposed methods of accessing qualitative
and quantitative data; its availability, quality,
comprehensiveness and comparability.

rrogress report (2) based on consultations outlined
5) indicating:

- issues identified by justice system practitioners and
social service workers, how they were selected, their
representativeness;

- the key actors selected for inclusion in the study, how
they were selected and their representativeness;

- level of interest or support for the study;

- hypotheses to be investigated in the research;

- the nature of available quantitative data related to

native involvement with the justice system (e.g. type
and frequency of offences or actions, demographics of
offenders or litigants, charges, pleas, representation,
case outcomes or decisions, dispositions) and related
to the legal information and other needs of native
peoples; proposed methods of accessing qualitative and
quantitative data; its availability, comprehensiveness,
comparability and quality.

8. Prepare a final research design report that will identify the
conceptual approach to the study (e.g. identify and priorize
research issues and objectives, research hypotheses\questions and
research concepts); determine the data collection methodology
(e.g. quantitative and qualitative data elements and the data
sources); construct preliminary research instruments; identify
the preliminary analysis plan (e.g. sampling methods and methods
of data analysis and assessment of data availability,
comprehensiveness, quality and reliability from the various data
sources); and estimate the costs of conducting the research.

PROPOSED RESEARCH ISSUES

Leqal Education Needs Issues

Are native people aware of the law (criminal, civil,
administrative, family)?

Are native people aware of their legal rights? *

Do they use the law to exercise their legal rights, to settle
disputes, and to meet legal obligations?
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Do native offenders, victims and witnesses have an understanding
of the criminal, civil and family law process? If yes, to what
extent? What 1s the nature of the information they have received
and the source?

What are the articulated demands and needs of native people,

native agencies, social services, and justice system personnel
for legal information?

Access To Justice Issues

What legal and other services are available to native litigants,
victims, offenders and witnesses (e.g. crime prevention,
mediation, interpretation, legal aid, counselling, in-court
orientation, referral, etc.)?

How are they delivered and by whom?

Are the services accessible?

Are the native people aware that the services are available? How
are they informed? Do they utilize the services?

Are there cultural, social or linguistic barriers affecting
access or delivery of the services?

What is the quality of the services?

Contact With the Criminal Justice Process Issues

What are the charging practices? What are the determinants of
the decision to lay a charge or not and of the nature of the
charge(s) laid? Among others, are alcohol or the family related
aspects of the offence factors to the decision? What is their
relative importance?

Are native offenders informed of their rights and, in particular,
of their right to counsel? Are they afforded legal
representation at all stages? Can the quality of this legal
representation be assessed? How?

Are there social, linguistic and cultural barriers for the
treatment of aboriginal offenders, victims and witnesses by the
criminal justice system? If yes, what are they and how could
they be resolved? -

What is the nature of the court dispositions of the cases? What
are its determinants?

Are aboriginal victims and witnesses kept informed of the outcome
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of the process? By whom and with what level of success?

At the prosecution and court levels, what are the problems
encountered by aboriginal offenders, victims and witnesses? What
organizations\mechanisms exist to respond to these problems?

What are the options to respond to unmet needs? Do the options
vary according to the various groups of aboriginal people? Age?
The situation of offender vs victim or witness?
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Dear g;, Gale:

The Department of Justice, Canada, has received a proposal
from the Union of Nova Scotia Indians for research to be
conducted on the legal needs of native people in selected
csites in the province of Nova Scotia. The proposed study
would include a focus on the problems and needs of native
adults and young offenders, victims and witnesses in their
encounter with the justice system involving criminal, civil
and family matters.

The request was reviewed by Department of Justice personnel
and it is believed that the results of such a study would
assist the department in determining and addressing access
to justice issues that affect native peoples in Canada. It
is hoped that the province of Nova Scotia would agree to
the usefulness of the proposed research.

Enclosed for your review and comments are the proposal from
the Union of Nova Scotia Indians, a copy of the letter that
has been sent to the Union of Nova Scotia Indians in
response to their proposal, and background material and the
proposed study draft terms of reference that have been
prepared by the Programs and Research Section of the
Department of Justice. If there is agreement to proceed
with the study, we would propose that it would occur in two
phases. The first phase would be essentially a feasibility
study to determine what are the perceived special legal
needs of natives in Nova Scotia and how they can best be
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assessed. In other words, the feasibility study would
identify, clarify and priorize research issues, determine
the availability and quality of i{nformation to address
these issues, and if a legal needs research study is
feasible, propose a research design that would include a
pudget and time frame. Based on the findings of the first
phase, the second phase, if mutually agreed upon, would
involve a study of the legal needs of native people in Nova
Scotia.

1f there is interest in this study by your department,
would you please jdentify a person who could meet to
further discuss the proposed research with representatives
from this department and the Union of Nova Scotia Indians.
It is estimated that the first phase of the research would
require a maximum of twenty weeks. All costs of the
research would be borne by this department.

The contact person at the Department of Justice is
Ms. Patricia Begin. Ms. Begin can be reached at
(613) 993-6645.

In advance, thank you for your consideration of this
project.

Sincerely,

D.C. Préfontaine, Q.C.
Assistant Deputy Minister
Policy, Programs and Research Branch

Encl.
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Mr. Kevin Christmas

Union of Nova Scotia Indians
P.O. Box 961

Sydney, Nova Scotia
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Dear Kevin:

Re: Proposed Research on Native Legal Needs
in Nova Scotia

As follow-up to our meetings late last year and to our
recent telephone conversations, regarding the above
mentioned, I am writing to inform you about the consider-
ation our department is giving to this research proposal.
As it was explained to you, our department could not
proceed with such a research proposal unless the province
of Nova Scotia was in support of the initiative and
expressed a willingness to collaborate. In addition,

the scope of the study could involve other ministries

at the federal level. Consultations are underway
regarding the research proposal with the appropriate
ministries both at the provincial and federal levels.

1 will keep you informed on the developments and results
of our consultations.

Sincerely yours,

éyd@ émdm

Eddie Gardner
Chief, Native Programs
Programs and Research Section

c.c. Daniel Sansfagon
Patricia Begin : «

Canada
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ISSUE

To determine the feasibility of conducting research on the legal
needs of native people in selected sites in the province of Nova
Scotia with a view to jdentify and priorize research issues
related to both the legal needs and problens aboriginal people
face in their contact with the justice systen and to determine
the availability, relevance, sources and quality of data to
address the issues. The study would include a focus on the

problems and needs of native adult and young offenders, victims
and witnesses.

BACKGROUND

since the passage of the Xang_g;;gggggg_ggg, the Department in
cooperation with provincial officials and Native organizations,
has conducted legal needs assessment studies of Native youths in
Quebec and Labrador with a focus on the role the Native
courtworker program could play in these provinces in meeting the
legal needs of native young offenders (currently the federal-
provincial agreements on the Native Courtworker program cover
services for native adults only). A somewhat similar, albeit
proader, study has also been conducted in New Brunswick, (where
no Native Courtworker program presently exists), which examined
the legal needs of Native adult and youth offenders as well as
victims and witnesses in their encounter with the justice system
Given the dearth of quantitative information on native
involvement with the justice system in canada (ethnicity is not
part of national statistics), these studies vere basically
exploratory and qualitative in their approach. Study findings
painly identify and detail legal needs articulated by key actors
from native communities and agencies and justice systen
personnel. These findings have contributed to exploring the

phenomena of native legal needs and impediments to access to
justice.

Generally, the information derived from the research has pointed
to three related areas in which native young offenders (Quebec
and Labrador) and adult and young offenders, victims and
vitnesses (New Brunswick) experience unmet needs - public legal
education, access to legal services, and encounters with the
criminal justice system. 1t was found that among native people
there tends to be lack of awareness of law, legal rights and
obligations; a jack of understanding of court procedures and the
justice system; a lack of knowledge about available legal
services; problems in availability, accessibility and utilization
of services; limited access to duty counsel and delivery of legal
aid; problems with the timing for circuit court cases and legal
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counsel; a disproportionately high rate of quilty pleas and
incarceration; and linguistic and cultural barriers to
unproblematic interaction with justice personnel including legal
aid and the justice process in general. Absent from these
studies are empirically confirmed phenomena or "hard
conclusions".

STATUS

The Chiefs of Nova Scotia have requested that the Department
conduct a comprehensive needs assessment study on "current public
legal issues confronting both the urban and reserve Indians of
Nova Scotia and to establish baseline data on native people and
the law in Nova Scotia". The province of Nova Scotia has been
without a Native Courtworker program since 1981. According to
the Union of Nova Scotia Indians, this has resulted in the
absence of native oriented public legal education services
covering a range of legal information needs of victims,
witnesses and offenders with no alternative program to deliver
native oriented legal services to aboriginal peoples in conflict.
with the law living on and off reserves in Nova Scotia.

co )

If such a study is supported by both levels of government and
native organizations in Nova Scotia, it is recommended that as a
first step toward launching a needs assessment study in Nova
Scotia, a feasibility study be conducted. From the previously
conducted native legal needs studies, much useful, albeit non-
random and unsystematic, descriptive information has been
collected. What has been learned can be applied to the
formulation and testing of hypotheses and to determine if more
rigourous research methods would improve data quality and
representativeness as well as the generalizability of study
findings thereby allowing for more definitive investigation and
conclusions respecting native legal needs, problems and improved
services and possibly new program options. 1In other words, a
feasibility study could clarify relevant issues and concepts,
establish reseach priorities, determine data collection
capabilities and address the costs, strengths and weaknesses of
conducting in-depth native legal needs research in Nova Scotia.
It could then be used as a tool, in addition to consultations
with a research steering committee, to inform decision-making
regarding the value of conducting this research in Nova Scotia.
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PROPOSED STUDY TERMS OF REFERENCE
Purpose:

To determine the feasibility of conducting research on the legal
needs of native people in selected sites in the province of Nova
Scotia with a view to identify and priorize research issues
related to both the legal needs and problems aboriginal people
face in their contact with the justice system involving criminal,
civil and family matters and to determine the availability,
relevance, sources and quality of data to address the issues.
The study shall include a focus on the problems and needs of
native adult and young offenders, victims and witnesses. The
study shall propose a study design and cost estimate.

ssent sks:

1. Review and synthesize study findings from completed and
relevant research with a view to identifying themes and issues.
Meet with the advisory committee to discuss research issues and

priorities and to review and finalize the work plan for the
feasibility study.

2. Contact Native organizations and agencies (on-reserve, off-
reserve, urban centres) to ascertain their interest and

commitment regarding the feasibility and (the possible)
subsequent study.

3. Based on (2), conduct on-site visits to select reserves, urban
and rural centres to determine concerns regarding Native legal
needs and problems encountered by Natives in their contact with
the justice system as perceived by them, recommended priority
research issues, available data and quality.

4. Consult with local Crown counsel, police, corrections and
justice system officials regarding the study, determine
recommended priority issues of importance for study, ascertain

their cooperation regarding subsequent data collection, and
available data and quality.

5. Consult with relevant social service networks to obtain

cooperation and support, identify issues recommended for study,
and available data and quality.

6. Prepare a progress report (1) based on the consultations
outlined in (1), (2) and (3) indicating:

- issues identified by steering committee and Native
organizations;

- the sites selected for the research,
representativeness, their relevant characteristics, the



, N *.h i,

-‘-

rationale for selection, level of local support;
- priority issues, relevant hypotheses for investigation;
- the nature of the available information related to
Native involvement with the justice system and their
legal needs; proposed methods of accessing qualitative
and quantitative data; its availability, quality,
comprehensiveness and comparability.

7. Prepare a progress report (2) based on consultations outlined
in (4) and (5) indicating:

- issues identified by justice system practitioners and
social service workers, how they were selected, their
representativeness;

- the key actors selected for inclusion in the study, how
they were selected and their representativeness;

- level of interest or support for the study:

- hypotheses to be investigated in the research;

- the nature of available quantitative data related to
native involvement with the justice system (e.g. type
and frequency of offences or actions, demographics of
offenders or litigants, charges, pleas, representation,
case outcomes or decisions, dispositions) and related
to the legal information and other needs of native
peoples; proposed methods of accessing qualitative and
quantitative data; its availability, comprehensiveness,
comparability and quality.

8. Prepare a final research design report that will identify the
conceptual approach to the study (e.g. identify and priorize
research issues and objectives, research hypotheses\questions and
research concepts); determine the data collection methodology
(e.g. quantitative and qualitative data elements and the data
sources); construct preliminary research instruments; identify
the preliminary analysis plan (e.g. sampling methods and methods
of data analysis and assessment of data availability,
comprehensiveness, quality and reliability from the various data
sources); and estimate the costs of conducting the research.

OPOS S
a ucatio eeds e

Are native people aware of the law (criminal, civil,
administrative, family)?

Are native pecple aware of their legal rights?

Do they use the law to exercise their legal rights, to settle
disputes, and to meet legal obligations?
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Do native offenders, victims and witnesses have an understanding
of the criminal, civil and family law process? If yes, to what

extent? What is the nature of the information they have received
and the source?

What are the articulated demands and needs of native people,

native agencies, social services, and justice system personnel
for legal information?

ccess 10O ssues

What legal and other services are available to native litigants,
victims, offenders and witnesses (e.g. crime prevention,
mediation, interpretation, legal aid, counselling, in-court
orientation, referral, etc.)?

How are they delivered and by whom?
Are the services accessible?

Are the native people aware that the services are available? How
are they informed? Do they utilize the services?

Are there cultural, social or linguistic barriers affecting
access or delivery of the services?

What is the quality of the services?

(o) ct W m B8 e cess su

What are the charging practices? What are the determinants of
the decision to lay a charge or not and of the nature of the
charge(s) laid? Among others, are alcohol or the family related

aspects of the offence factors to the decision? What is their
relative importance?

Are native offenders informed of their rights and, in particular,
of their right to counsel? Are they afforded legal

representation at all stages? Can the quality of this legal
representation be assessed? How?

Are there social, linguistic and cultural barriers for the
treatment of aboriginal offenders, victims and witnesses by the

criminal justice system? If yes, what are they and how could
they be resolved?

What is the nature of the court dispositions of the cases? What
are its determinants?

Are aboriginal victims and witnesses kept informed of the outcome
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of the process? By whom and with what level of success?

At the prosecution and court levels, what are the problenms
encountered by aboriginal offenders, victims and witnesses? What
organizations\mechanisms exist to respond to these problems?
What are the options to respond to unmet needs? Do the options
vary according to the various groups of aboriginal people? Age?
The situation of offender vs victim or witness?

Ny,
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Introduction

For the Micmac people of Nova Scotia the interest in
legal services and the development of an awareness of the
function of the law in society is a relatively recent
occurrance. For the most part the interest in the law has been
prirarily in the area of land claims, fishing and hunting laws,
etc., as opposec to the incividual problems a person faces

because of native status or their socio-econoric conlition,

Wwith the increased interest in econozic development
spurred on by the availability of financial support from the
Native Economic Development Fund and the creation of Indian
owned financial development institutions there is bound to arise

gore interest and need for legal information that is

specialized, i.e. commercial law,

For the most part lova Scotia's reserves are rural
comrmunities and suffer from a lack of access to legal
information that is often taken for granted by people living in
our urban centres. For the Micmac people access has a broad
definition that goes beyond just physical access to include
knovledge of the availability of information services as well sas

the unique cultural and linquistic barriers that face Indian

people.
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1n sddition there needs to be a
the impact of the legesl system on native
and as one wvho is affected by the socisl

community merber coming in conflict with

special recognition of
vomen both as offender
impact of @ family or

the law,

In a recent report the Legal Services Corporation of

the United States notes several major access barriers for native

people:

1. Where no legal services

are available;

2. Where the target group is unable to reach

progran offices because of
of transportation, etc.,

physical distarnce, lack

3. Where the service Oor prograc is unable to
provide service on & particular problem because of

inability or unwillingness;

L. Where there is a lack of knovledge of the

program or knowledge that t

he program could be

helpful on a particular problen;

5. Where potential services of information or
referral direct the client elsvhere irrespective
of the effectiveness of assistance that could be
had fror the available legal services progran:
G. Access problexs cue to languege, ethnicity or

cvlture;
7. Where lack of expertise
ycor secrvice ard alvice.

or cuz2lity resclte in

1t is one focus of this proposal to identify the areas

of legal public education in the native communities of Nova

Scotia that do not fall within the context of conflict with the

law. Le must not focus on exclusively on cricinal law matters.
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In reality the legal problems of Micmac people eare

veried. In the non-criminal srea such issues e8s:

discrimination in employnment
* loan defaults
unfair consumer practices

denial of benifits due under income support

programs

:e field of public legal education services for Yicrac
people in “ova Scotia has been in a2 state of sigrnificant decline
over the past number of years. With the loss of the native
court workers program in 1981 there has been no legal services

operated by native or non-native people directed at the Micmac

comzunity.

\

-+ the cisappearance of the court worker prograc
netive pec;.€ have very little access to ir.ferration on the
legal systez, and it is generally perceivec as a foreign, vhite
controlled system, that impacts dramatically on life in the

rural reserve comrunities.

Just es the reserve communities perceive the legal
system of Canadian society as alien and mysterious, 50 to the
growing population of native people living in our urban centres
reacte with distrust to the law which is seen as 8 tool of white

control. Currently there are no programs to act as sources of
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{information and mediation for the urban Indian of Nova Scotia,
For all native people in Nove Scotis, whether rural or urban,

there is 8 need to demystify the lav and make it part of their

owvn values and rules.

The Chiefs of Nova Scotia in recognizing this state of
affairs have therefore instructed their staff to prepare a

comprehensive research proposal the results of which will form

the basis for a comprehensive strategy for 2 vhole new set of
innovative j;rogram initiatives to meet the legal services

neecs for the Indian people of Nova Scotia.
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RESEARCH OBJECTIVES

nceds &8s

This study will undertake to carry out 8 comprehensive

sessment on current public legal issues confronting both

the urban and reserve Indians of Nova Scotia and to establish

baseline data on native people and the law in Kova Scotia.

Secondly it will undertake to develop a series of program

strategies

that will respond effectively to the identified needs

of the “icmac people. ‘tore specifically the study will:

1. Undertake a literature search on legel service

jssues for native people in Canada and the United

States.

2. Undertake an extensive process of consultation
at the reseerve and urban levels with native
people to identify what the peo;le themselves

perceive to be the probler areas.

3. Analyze the the above collected data to
establish the legal service needs of Micmac people
who live

A.On reserves

B.Off reserves

C.In urban areas
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4. Establish baseline data for Micmac people in
terms of Types of crime, type of sentence and
place of incarceration, male, female, and youth
breakdown, Micmac attitudes to incarceration, and

the particular problems of native wvomen and youth.

5. ldentify the special problems that native

people encounter in facing municipal or provincial
legal jurisdictions including the special problexs
of incarceration and fines in county and municipal

incarceration,

6. ldentify a number of program strategies that
vill provide sources of reliable, objective

jnformation to native people in the areas of:

1, legal education progracs
2. legal inforratior prograrcs
3, legal service progracs

4, judicial services

5. local correctional services

6. Make recommendations to the chiefs of Nova
Scotia for & comprehensive action plan for Micmacs
and the law in Nova Scotia which will give much

greater ownership of the legal process to native

people.
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STUDY TEAM

Over 8l]l responsibility for the research project will
rest with Kevin Christmas, Director of Economic Development for

the Union of Nova Scotia lndians. Tom O'Leary, Cape Comrunity

Planning Associates, will act as principal consultant and

researcher, He will be assisted in carrying out general

research by a mermber of the Micmac comrmunity.

In addition it is proposed that a special advisory

e — " " e

conrittee be established to provide ongoing sdvise and direction

to the study team. Such a committee would be invaluable in

defining focus to the overall project as well as assisting the
study team in setting its priorities. This committee would be

made up of representatlves of the private and public sectors as

—_—

wvell as re:resentatives fror other native associations with

particulaer refererce to the Laztive Council of W.S. 27l to the

v.S. Native lomen's Association.

The advisory committee would also review the draft
final report as to its adequate coverage of such areas as the
barriers native people confront in accessing the legal systen;
the expectation of the native community; as well as equality of

aboriginal protection under the law.
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METHODOLOGY

The appropriate methodology for this research project

vill consist of:

1. An extensive analysis of the literature using
standard library research techniques as well as
computer based searches therough appropriate

databases.

2. Consultation with comrunity leaders and band

councils.

3, Interviews with appropriate government

officials having a responsibility for law and

justice relate areas.

4., Visitations to a2 number of innovative prograr

models across the country.

5. Interviews with selected individuals from the

Micmac community who have come into conflict with

the law.

6. Special interviewvs with native people living in

an urban setting as well as native women.
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7. The consultation with the specisl advisory

committee to provide overall feedback and

direction to the study team, e e

8. The identification of new program strategies
that can be said to be on the leading edge of
progam innovation for natives and the law such as

the concept of a Native Justice of the Peace

program,
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TIMEFRAME

It is expected that the study can be completed in @

sixteen (16) week period.

RUDGET

Project Manager 40 days G 300 12,000
Principal researcher 48 days € 350 16,800
Rsearcher 80 days € 100 8,000
Benefits € 102 3,680
Total $40,480

Acrinistration

office rent 4,000
office equipment 1,200
photocopying 1,200
telephone 2,000
travel and accomdation 15,000
report printing 2,000
total 25,400
Special advisory committee.(travel,accomadation

honourarium etc,) 10,000

Total ; $75,880
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From Martin E. Herschorn Our Fue Helerence
& . et 7- 000 .
Director (Prosecutions) /7}1 ( H 3-8 0r'3 x b
To Gordon F. Coles, Q.C. Your Fue Reference
Deputy
suwect  Federal Department of Justice Study Dae March 18, 1987

- Legal Needs of Native People

In reviewing Gordon Gale's mail while he is away on vacation, |
came across the attached correspondence from Dan Prefontaine. | thought

it appropriate to bring this correspondence to your attention.

MEH:if

Encl.
c.c. Gordon S. Gale, Q.C’:/
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May 5, 1987

Mr. Daniel Sansfacon

Policy, Programs & Research Branch
Department of Justice

OTTAWA, Canada

K1A OHS8

Dear Mr. Sansfacon:

Re: PFederal Department of Justice Study
Legal Needs of Native People

Further to Mr. Prefontaine's 1letter of March 1l6th
addressed to Gordon Gale of this Department concerning
the proposed research on the legal needs of native
people in Nova Scotia, I acknowledge the usefulness
of such research.

I am referring your correspondence to R. G. Conrad,
Executive Director, Legal Services, whom I suggest
be your initial contact person in the Department.
Mr. Conrad may wish to identify other persons
depending on the need in the course of your proposed
studies.

Since matters concerning aboriginal people in this
Province are the responsibility of the Department
of Social Services, I am copying Mr. Prefontaine's
correspondence to Carmen Moir, the Deputy Minister
of 8ocial Saervices, who may wish to name a contact
person in his Department.

Yours very truly

Gordon F. Coles

c.c. Carmen Moir

- &
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Nova Scotia

P

Department of PO Box 7
Haktax, Nova Scotia
Attommey General ferp
Our file no:

23-87-0003-06
Owr phone no:

. September 11, 1987

Mr. Carmen Moir
Deputy Minister
Department of Social Services

Re: Federal Department of Justice Study

This relates to Gordon Coles' letter of May 5, 1987 to Mr. Daniel
Sansfacon, a copy of which was forwarded to your attention. | am
enclosing a copy of that letter for your ready reference.

The Department of Justice wishes to arrange a meeting in Halifax of
representatives of the Department of Attorney General and other
interested officials. | would appreciate it if you would advise me whether
the Department of Social Services should be represented at that meeting
and, if so, the name of the individual nominated for that purpose.

Yours very truly,

/?,4/.

R. Gerald Conrad, Q.C.
Executive Director

‘;'"\ ;
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Department of P Box 696 5
ax,‘Nova otia

Social Services B2y 217

Office of

the Deputy Minister

September 16, 1987

Mr. R. Gerald Conrad, Q.C.
Executive Director

(Legal Services)

Department of Attorney General

P.0. Box 7
Halifax, Nova Scotia
B3] 2Lé

Dear Mr. Conrad:

Thank you for your letter of September 11, 1987
regarding the Federal Department of Justice Study on Legal
Needs of Native People.

I am pleased to advise you that the Department of
Social Services will be sending two representatives to the
upcoming meeting on September 29, 1987, Mrs. Martha Crowe
and Mr. Allan Clark.

If 1 can be of any further assistance, please do not
hesitate to contact me.

Yours truly,

J;? (e

(P daar B
——————

Carmen Moir
Deputy Minister

CM/ARC/sh
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Attorney General M@m(@[f‘@[m@ﬂﬂ 0

From R. Gerald Conrad, Q.C. Our F = Re'erence
23-87-0003-06

To The Honourable Terence R.B. Donahoe,Q.C. Ycu 7 le Poterence

October |, 1987
Subject Date

The Federal Department of Justice received a proposal from the Union of
Nova Scotia Indians for research to be conducted into the legal needs of native
people in selected sites in the Province of Nova Scotia. The proposed study
would include a focus on the problems and needs of native adults and young
offenders, victims and witnesses in their encounter with the justice system
involving criminal, civil and family matters.

The Justice Department concluded that such a study would assist in determining
and addressing access to Justice issues that affect native peoples in Canada.
They asked Nova Scotia to assess the usefulness of the proposed research.

They propose that the study proceed in two phases. The first would be
essentially a feasibility study to determine what are the perceived special
legal needs of Indians in Nova Scotia and how they can best be assessed.
Based on the feasibility study the second phase, if mutually agreed upon by
Justice and ourselves, would involve a study of the legal needs of native people
in Nova Scotia.

On September 29th Allan Clark and Martha Crowe of the Department of
Social Services, and Bob Lutes and myself met with Daniel Sansfacon and
Patricia Begin of the Department of Justice. The purpose of the meeting
was to consider, in a general way, the focus of the proposed study and to
determine whether it was appropriate to authorize a feasibility study.

.....,2



Following our meeting the provincial representatives consulted and agreed
unanimously that no decision should be made on the merits of such a study
until the conclusion of the Marshall Inquiry. As you know, the Marshall Inquiry
Commission has interpreted its mandate to inquire into the whole of the
administration of criminal justice in Nova Scotia and the Union of Nova Scotia
Indians has status before the Commission. The Commission has authorized
research of both a legal and an empirical nature into racial discrimination
in Nova Scotia. | assume that the research will be directed to circumstances
in 1971 as well as in 1987 although | have no direct knowledge thereof.

If you agree that it would be inappropriate at this point in time to make a
. decision with respect to the proposed study, | will advise the Federal officials
that no decision will be made until the Report of the Marshall Inquiry has
been received.
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PSYCHOTHERAPY - CLINICAL HYPNOSIS

Suite 373
Halifax Professional Centre
5991 Spring Garden Road

'SYCHOLOGICAL SL VICES

Kris Marinic, M.S., Psychologist

(Candidate Register)
| LML / éj Office
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Halifax, N.S. B3H 1Y6 P ETRIL ei i
The Royal Commission Into the Royal {w'u.. 2 e
< Ll J ‘E
Donald Marshall, Jr. Prosecution Honaid Marslisil Iﬁé@y,/"_,z¢4ugégflﬂff

I. P | K
Recisuar

—

Halifax, N.S.
June 21, 1988

Re: Donald Marshall

Dear sirs:

I saw the above named individual on 23 occasions between the period of
February 3rd and August 1st, 1984 at his request regarding assistance with ad just-
ment following his release from prison. Then I saw Mr. Marshall on 9 occasions
between April 3rd and July 24th, 1987 at his lawyer's request in order to help the
former cope with stress associated with the, at the time, upcoming inquiry.
Subsequently, I saw him on June 20, 1988 again at the request of his legal counSel
regarding his quality of testimony; that is whether Mr. Marshall's ability to
testify would be adversely affected by the procedings being televised.

At our most recent session he appeared to be exessively worried, anxious
and fearful as well as fatigued and wasted. It is my opinion that his condition
has deteriorated since I last saw him. He seemed to be particularly afraid of the
humiliation associated with even further public exposure.

Mr. Marshall is a self-conscious and mistrustful individual who tends to perceive

his enviroment and his present situation in particular, as hostile and threatening.

Given his past experiences and the ongoing current stress, in my
opinion, the exposure to television cameras and bright lights would compromise his
ability to testify. Most likely, his level of anxiety would adversly affect his
speech, concentration and memory.

Consequently, not only would he endure more distress, the quality of his testimony
would also suffer.
I therefore, recommend that the television equipment be turned off

during Mr. Marshall's testimony.

PREM P AlartesPon B

JUN 22 1988

ccs (K. Marinic, M.S.)

Mis Ann S. Derrick
Buchan, Dorrlck and Ring

_____________



STATEMENT OF FACTS WITH RESPECT TO THE
"THORNHILL" CASE

Background

This case arose out of circumstances surrounding a
compromise financial settlement reached by the Honourable
Roland Thornhill ("Thornhill") on November 27, 1979 to
settle his indebtedness to four Canadian chartered banks.

As of January 31, 1978 Thornhill was indebted to the four
banks in the aggregate amount of $142,576.83 all of which
was unsecured. This debt had been accumulated over a number
of years commencing in the early 1970's.

Thornhill put forth a proposal, through his accountant, on
September 17, 1979 whereby he would pay 25% owing to each of
the banks, providing they all accepted and, there was a
forgiveness of interest accruing since January 31, 1978.

The four banks confirmed their acceptance during the period
September 21 to November 5, 1979.

Thornhill had been Minister of Development in the Provincial
Government since October 5, 1978.

Pre-Investigation Stage - January - March, 1980

In February, 1980, rumours were circulating publicly
regarding the Thornhill case and the RCMP met with the
Attorney General, the Deputy Attorney General, et al to
brief the Attorney General.

On March 7, 1980 the Attorney General advised the
Legislature that the RCMP were not conducting an
investigation in relation to any government official, the
provincial government or any government agency.

On March 11, 1980 the Attorney General, the Deputy Attorney
General and Mr. Gordon Gale met with Superintendent
Christen, 0iC, CIB and Inspector Blue, 0iC, CCS, to discuss
RCMP involvement in the Thornhill matter. Following this
meeting, the Deputy Attorney General reviewed and commented
upon a draft press release prepared by Supt. Christen who
released a modified version stating that the Attorney
General was correct in his report to the House of March 7,
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1980 and advising that: "Information had been received by
the RCMP concerning such matters and in mid-February
inquiries were made into such information, which inquiries
did not warrant the commencement of an investigation",

RCMP Investigation - April 10, 1980 - August 29, 1980

On Thursday, April 10, 1980 Chief Superintendent Feagan and
Inspector McInnes met with Gordon Gale, Director Criminal,
and advised him that: "we would be proceeding with an
investigation to which he agreed".

On April 18, 1980 the Attorney General, Harry How, is
reported in a news article entitled "RCMP Seeking
Documentation" as follows:

"He told reporters later he is convinced

Mr. Thornhill did nothing improper in the
settlement with the banks and he hopes the
Minister will stay in his job for a 'long

time to come'.

He said the matter of the Minister keeping

his portfolio during the investigation would

be up to the Premier to decide.

Mr. How said his Department is letting the RCMP
conduct the investigation.

'We are not going to be seen as exercising

any political interference with what they do'."

On May 7, 1980 Cpl. House filed an interim report in which
he concluded:

"That there is sufficient evidence on hand to
establish a prima facie case under Section
110(1)(c)c.cC.

Consideration is now being given as to whether
or not there is sufficient evidence to substan-
tiate an offence by the banks or its officers.
Offences that are being considered are Sec.
110(1)(b)C.C. or Conspiracy, Sec. 423 c.c."

This RCMP report was forwarded to Gordon Gale's attention on
May 14, 1980.

On June 26, 1980 a further interim RCMP report was submitted
and concluded as follows:

"Further investigation to follow.... wupon
completion of these inquiries an analysis
of information and documentation on hand,
the Crown Prosecutor will be contacted and
a decision made regarding the laying of
charges",
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This report was forwarded to Mr. Gale's attention on June
27, 1980.

In early July, 1980 David Thomas, Q.C., Chief Prosecuting
Officer, instructed Kevin Burke to meet with Cpl. House,
Investigating Officer, to determine if charges should be
laid, and then to forward his recommendations to Thomas and
await further instructions.

On July 18, 1980 a further interim RCMP report was submitted
detailing interviews with senior officers of the various
banks involved and advising that:

"preliminary discussions have been held

with Crown Counsel, Mr. Burke, and it is
intended to have further discussions with
him when he and the investigator return

from holidays. A review of all information
gathered to-date will be undertaken then and
any further course of action decided upon",

On July 24, 1980 Gordon Gale contacted the RCMP and advised
of his 'extreme displeasure' that the Investigating Officer,
Cpl. House had met with Crown Prosecutor, Kevin Burke. The
RCMP spokesperson informed Mr. Gale: "that I was not in any
position to instruct our members not to see Crown Counsel
bearing in mind that it is normal practice when
investigations are conducted, whether they be minor or major
in nature".

Following receipt of the RCMP report referred to in
paragraph 14 herein, which was forwarded on July 23, 1980
Mr. Gale wrote to Chief Supt. Feagan to convey the Deputy
Attorney General's instructions:

"that no charges were to be laid nor was

any contact to be made with prosecutors
concerning this matter until you had finished
your investigation and forwarded a report to
this Department so that the matter could then

be examined and the Attorney General fully
apprised of the evidence. Your investigators
are to cease to have contact with the prosecutors
concerning this investigation and to concentrate
on getting the long awaited report in to the
Department summarizing the evidence and the
charges proposed based on the evidence so that
it can be reviewed and then forwarded for
prosecution if the evidence supports charges".
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On September 4, 1980, Mr. Thomas, Chief Prosecuting Officer

wrote to Mr. Gale "Re: Roland J. Thornhill" as follows: "As
it appears this file is being monitored by yourself, it will
be considered concluded here unless we receive instructions

from you".

On August 29, 1980 a final report was submitted by the
investigating officer and subsequently forwarded to Mr.
Gale's attention by coverning letter dated September 11,
1980. The report concluded with the following two
paragraphs:

"The foregoing, read in conjunction with the
attachments, outlines some of the evidence
gathered to-date. This matter is a very
involved and time-consuming one. On the

basis of the information outlined as a result

of my investigation, I would like to make the
following recommendations: 'l) That I have
established a prima facie case of sec. 110 (1)
(c) C.C. against Mr. Thornhill. Therefore,

a prosecutor be appointed to take this matter
before the courts; 2) That I have shown some
evidence that Mr. Thornhill obtained funds by
FALSE PRETENSES and I would like to further
discuss this matter with a prosecutor (Sec. 320
(1)(ec) c.Cc.) (Attachment #3). 3) That the four
chartered banks involved in the settlement

have violated the Criminal Code - Sec. 110(1)(c)
by virtue of Sec. 21(1)(b) C.C. and consideration
should be given to charging them; 4) That there
is evidence that the four chartered banks,

Mr. Thornhill, ... [et al]... have conspired to
have Mr. Thornhill receive a benefit and should
be charged with Conspiracy, Sec. 421(1)(4) C.cC.

In view of the fact that this is a delicate matter
as well as a very involved one, it is requested
that a Crown Prosecutor be appointed in view of
Mr. Gale's correspondence of 80-07-25. T would
like to discuss this matter with the prosecutor to:

1. Get his advice regarding the importance of the
evidence available;

2. Get his advice regarding the importance of obtaining
additional evidence to support the charge(s);

3. Seek his advice on questions of law; and,

4. The procedures that will be followed in court.
This is per OPS. MAN. III.6.E.4."
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‘ Therefore be it resolved that all members of this House understand the essential
contribution of a free media and what it makes to a democratic government, and
condemns any attempt by members of this House to intimidate or otherwise interfere in
the discharge of those duties.

MR. SPEAKER: The notice is tabled.
Order, please.

This is a little bit out of order, but there has been a request, I understand, from
the Government House Leader that we revert to Statements by Ministers and it would
require the consent of the House.

MR. WILLIAM GILLIS: That would be placed in order.
MR. VINCENT MACLEAN: Why don't you just letitgo . ..

MR. SPEAKER: Well, it is up to the House. It would require unanimous consent to
revert . ..

Is it agreed?

It is agre?d.
The horourable Solicitor General.

HON. RQNALD RUSSELL: Mr. Speaker, would you please call the order of business,
Statements by Ministers.

STATEMENTS BY MINISTERS
MR. SPEAKER: The honourable Attorney General.

HON. TERENCE DONAHOE: Thank you very much, Mr. Speaker. | had hoped that
what I am now going to read would have been in my possession before my distinguished
colleague, the Minister of Industry, Trade and Technology, rose to his feet a moment
ago.

I rise now, Mr. Speaker, to advise you and to advise all members of the House
that I am in receipt of a telex communication from Kelowna, B.C., which bears on the
matters which have occupied so much time in this House the last few days and are the
subject of the statements made just moments ago by the Minister of Industry, Trade
and Technology. With the indulgence of the House I wish to read a communication
which has been sent to me from Mr. Hugh Feagan and it reads as follows:

*It is not usual for me to become involved in matters which were completed prior
to my retirement from the R.C.M.P.

My name is being used now simply because a reporter from the Toronto Star

newspaper contacted me to ask about my involvement in recollection of and opinions
about, the investigation of the affairs of Hon. Roland Thornhill.

9
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It is clear from my reading of the Toronto Star article that what I have said
about the matter has been misrepresented.

It must be made clear, as it was in Chief Commissioner Simmond's letter of
February 21, 1981 addressed to Mr. Harry How, Attorney Gazeral of Nova Scotia of
the day, that because the matter was of a higk profile nature, steps were taken to
have it very carefully reviewed with the R.C.M. Police force both at the divisional and
headquarters level. Further, it is important to remember that the Force was clearly of
the view that it had the right to lay cnarges, regardless of any legal advice it received,
from the Attcrney General's Dept., if the Force was convinced that there were reason-
able grounds to do so.

This entire matter was carefully reviewed under the direction of Mr. J.R.R. Quintal
who was the senior officer for criminal operations at R.C.M.P. Headquarters in Ottawa.

Initially, prior to that review, I was of the opinion that charges could possibly go
forward against Mr. Thornhill, Following the complete review, it became clear that all
of the circumstances reflected in the file, combined with the evidence gathered by the
investigating officers, did not warrant the laying of any charge nor the continuation of
any further investigation, as noted in Commissioner Simmond's letter to Attorney
General How. That was a conclusion with which I agreed.

It is important, I believe, to recall, as Commissioner Simmonds pointed out in

February 198, that my judgement and that of the R.C.M.P. Force was reached entirely
within the Fo\ce and there was no outside influence or direction.

\
The mattkr was handled properly at all stages by R.C.M.P. and by the Nova
Scotia Attorney General's Department.

Contrary to some media reports, it should also be made clear that at no time did
the Department of the Attorney General of Nova Scotia block or attempt to block, any
investigation of this matter.

Reputations, my own included, are being subjected to scrutiny in this matter, and
I felt it important for all concerned, again myself included, to have a clear statement
of the facts made available.".

Signed, Hugh Feagan and dated at Kelowna, British Columbia, April 12, 1988. 1
will table that, Mr. Speaker.

MR. SPEAKER: The honourable Leader of the Opposition.

MR. VINCENT MACLEAN: Mr. Speaker, in tabling the memo which is considerably
different from the live interview which 1 had the opportunity to watch last night on
CBC...

AN HON. MEMBER: It is edited . . .

MR. VINCENT MACLEAN: Mr. Speaker . . .

MR. WILLIAM GILLIS: The Leader of the Opposition has the floor.



80-11-05

1.00 P.M,

80-11-06
2.30 P.M.

- Wednesday.

- Meeting D0.C.I. and N.S. C.I.B. re: Thornhill case and
refusal by A.G. to prosecute.
- 5-10-78: Appointed to Cabinet. All proposal made to banks
in sept 79.
- 3.30 P.M. Christen says Thomas heard that our report has been
leaked and Kevin Burke appeared on A.T.V. to comment on it.
- 1 copy, Original, by Christen. never left his safe.
2 copy Halifax Comm. Crime
1 Com. Crime Ottawa
1 to DAG, 2nd copy, 6 weeks.

a) head of gov't branch”for written consent
b) Knowledge of dealing with the gov't

Decision: They are to write back to A.G. and say they feel
very strongly about the matter and oumtline their reason why
they disagree with the evaluation of the O.A.G. We feel a
charge is warrantedunder 110-(1)(C)

They are likely to be questioned about their visit here. They

can candidly admit that they felt stron,gly that a charge should
be laid on the basis of the evidence available and that because
of the seriousness of the matter, HQ felt it should be discussed.

- Thursday

- DCI. re: Thornhill case.

- a) No leak of report - Just that an informant of the investigator
says he say'a copy of this report.

b) Burke made a statement to the press that he had been assigned
the case but then it was removed and told that he was not to
handle and the RCMP told mot go to him.

c) DAG has issued lengthlu statement from Victoria that the case
was never assigned to Burke - that as per standing practice,
ACMP were to report such serious cases for review by A.G. Dept.




-2-
C) cont'd
prior to charges. (Div. says this is new as a standing

policy for all cases).

d) Libersal caucus met and issued & stdtement charging cover-up.

' They want an all party inquiry.
,,:..._-—17:—'"
///,,——HE\\ e) "H'" to go ahead with action agreed upon yesterday.
_ LA e B
- g —

4 dec 80 - beudi
9.30 a.m. £ Briefing by D.C.I. (I had been away to Interpol Conference)

3) Thornhill file: - Faghan had a very stormy meeting with A.G. and
O.A.G. He made known our views and got a rough treatment -
They have sent in their proposed reply to the A.G.
- D.C.I. is reviewing and will prepare a memo For me to

H Div.
80-12-10 X\ Wednes day
10.30 a.m.| - I call C/Supt Feaghan. (on another case)

2) He asks me where we are at in terms of laying charges

in the Thornhill case. - Insp. Blue and the other member

have to appear next Wednesday in civil court. - Even if

access to documents is contested, in their verbal testi-
mony, they will have to say that they had in fact recom-
mended charges and that they believe the evidence warrants
this.

- Defendants may also call C/Supt Feaghan - There is a lot
of publicity in the Halifax area on this civil case.
Thornhill is sueing for defamation of character. Two
bank employees whom the station says were transferred or
Fired due to this Thornhill affair are also thinking of
a civil suit.

wen v 3
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- Feaghan says A.G. never said we could not lay the charge

—TBuUt that 1t would be very serious in light of the legal

review made by 3 top legal brains in his dept., as well
as himself. .

- if comments are made by our members in civil court it may
jeopardize our ability to lay a charge at a later date,
as it could prejudice a fair trial
Really need a decision before the civil action proceeds
I told him we had the matter under review and would get
back to him a.s.a.p.

Wednesday
D.C.I.

- call to Feaghan.

- He'll photofax my memo today.

— Be: civil case - this morning Blue was allowed to give
his background - Then he was asked if he had in fact
recommended charges against Thornhill.

- Thornhill's lawyer ob jected

- so did the lawyer for the A.G.

- Judge also asked federal counsel and he replied that he
really had no grounds to object.

- They will now draw up a list of guestions they want to
ask Blue, then seeking directions from a judge.

- Proceedings have been adjourned.

Tuesday .

- Discussed with the Comm'r

3) Discussed the Thornhill case and the Force policy on
the production of police report, to the effect that we
should resist the production of any report unless
required by law.

- I call Feaghan.

a) He appeared on both ATV and CBC - He made a statement on
ATV without any question being asked. On CBC after he
made his statement he was asked if the decision had been

made in Ottawa. He replied "I _won't deny that 1 consulted

our office in Ottawa, but the final decision was made here.

I ask him to get a transcript of what he said if possible,

aS SOME ARE infering the Min. was involved and he was not.

B .../ /4
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5:10 P.M. - Call to Feaghan - Cont'd

b) I ask him how the decision was taken by his staff - He i
said they did not like it, but they have\ggﬁ)accepted el

v/

it. He sees no need for me to go down there now. No .~

doubt it will be discussed when I do my visit there.

81-01-14 - ‘Wednesday
3.50 P.M. C/Suot Feaghan calls.

— CBC are unable to give them a copy of the tape as it is
against their policy - We would have to go there and take
notes.

- Feaghan states that all his comments with regards to consul -

~ _ration related to ACMP HQ and the Commissioner.

Monday - Notebook No. 4 - 6 février 1981 au 22 mai 1981.

- C/Supt Feaghan

- article appeared in local paper on Mar 13/81 quoting the A.G.
that he had rec'd a letter from the Comm'r completely
vindicating Thornhill.

_ I tell him the Comm'r letter simply stated we had reached
the same conclusion that his DAG had reached ''charges are

unwarranted"
- IF we had of course reached a different conclusion, we would

have attempted to lay charges.
- We will send him a copy if not already done.

(DCI told to look after this).

- o= == ==
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R(MP seeking doc®mentation

The RCMP liled sworn infor-
mations Wednesday and
Thursday fur eight search war-
rants lo examine records at (i
nanclal Institutions in the Hall-
fax-Dartmouth area regarding
thelr deslings with Develop-
ment Minister Rolund
Thornhill.

Pulice want to examine doc-
uments held by the Royal
Bank of Canada, the Bank of
Nuva Scolla, the Bank of Mon-

" treal, the Toronto-Dominlon

Bank, the Canadian Imperial
I}m;_ol Commerce, Roysl

Trust and Richurdson Securk
ties of Canada.

The police are looking for do-
cumentatson of the minister's
business dealings With the in-
stitutions between Jun. 1, 1974
and April 16, 1980,

The warrant applications are
based on a suspected violation
of Scction 110 of the Criminal
Code of Canada, which makes
it lllegal for a person (o use po-
Itical influence or purparted
political Influence to obtain a
benelit.

Altorney-General Harry How
gaid In the legisluture Thurs-
day Mr. Thornhlll told the
RCMP “he has nothing to hide
and he was prepared to supply
them with any information or

« documents which were avall-

‘- ---A-:-‘.

- L — . . W —

sble to him."

Answering David Muise (L-
Cape Breton West), he sald his
depaument s assepsing any
laformation It is given and the
RCMP hud furnished a report
within the last lew days.”” °

He sald he had no personal
knowledye of the search war-
rants but he had heard about

“‘-.ﬁ ‘

B

them just before entering the
House.

He told reporters later he ls
convinced Mr. Thornhill did
nothing Improper Ia the seltle-
ment with the banks and he
hopes the minisler will stay in

his job fer a “long Uime Yo

comae."

He said Ohq mpjieryof the
minister kesping portfollo
during the favestigatien would
be up to the premier o decide.

Mr. How eald bis dopartment
ln lotting by RCMP cenduct
the Lrves g Uon- e

“We ars oo} going to be seon
aa exsrcigiog any politics! lp
terfarence with what they da.”

2.
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R. v. RUDDOCK 77

Nova Scotia Supreme Court, Appeal Division
Coffin, Cooper and Macdonald, JJ.A.
February 14, 1978.

CRIMINAL LAW - TOPIC 5833
Sentencing - Considerations on imposing sentence - Deter-
rence - The Nova Scotia Court of Appeal held that in sen-

ing a gift the deterrent effect of sentencing was paramount
- See paragraphs 19-25,

CRIMINAL LAW - TOPIC 5902
Sentence - Corruption of officials - Acceptance of benefit
by government official - Criminal Code of Canada, R.S.C.
1970, c. C-34, s.110(1)(c) - The administrator of the Nova
Scotia Liquor Licencing Board accepted a total of $1,000.00
from a man at four consecutive Christmas parties - The ac-

cused had no power of decision respecting the man's dealings

with the Board and the gifts were not specific bribes - The
accused lost his job because of the gifts and suffered pub-
lic humiliation - The Nova Scotia Court of Appeal affirmed
a sentence of the accused to a fine of $2,000.00.

CRIMINAL LAW - TOPIC 6202

Sentencing - Appeals - Variation of sentence - Dutiles of ap-

peal court - The Nova Scotia Court of Appeal stated that
the court was required to consider the fitness of the sen-

tence appealed from, but that a sentence should not be deem-

ed improper merely because the Court of Appeal would have
imposed a different one - The Court of Appeal stated that
apart from misdirection or non-direction on proper sentenc-

ing principles a sentence should be varied only if the court
is satisfied that the sentence is clearly excessive or inad-

equate - See paragraph 26.

Summary :

This case arose out of a charge against the accused as a
government official of accepting gifts. The accused was the
administrator of the Nova Scotia Liquor Licencing Board. He
accepted a total of $1,000.00 in four successive years at
Christmas parties from a man who dealt with the board. The
accused had no power of decision in the man's dealings with
the board and the gifts were not specific bribes. The accus-
ed pleaded guilty and was sentenced to a fine of $2,000.00.
The Crown appealed from sentence.

The Nova Scotia Court of Appeal dismissed the appeal and af-

- tencing on a charge against a government official of accept-



78 25 N.S.R.(2d) and 36 A.P.R.
firmed the sentence of the accused.

For the appeal from the sentence of the man who made the
gifts to the accused. See R. v. Boudreau (1978), 24 N.S.R.
(2d) 63; 36 A.P.R. 63.

CASES JUDICIALLY NOTICED:

R. v. Cooper (No. 2) (1977), 35 C.C.C.(2d) 35, appld. [para.
8].

R. v. Cooper (1975), 22 C.C.C.(2d) 273, consd. [para. 10].

R. v. Jackson (1977), 21 N.S.R.(2d) 17; 28 A.P.R. 17, consd.
[para. 15].

R. v. Tanguay (1976), 24 C.C.C.(2d) 77, dist. [para. 16].

R. v. Morrissette (1971), 1 C.C.C.(2d) 307, consd. [para.
19].

R. v. Melanson (1976), 18 N.S.R.(2d) 189; 20 A.P.R. 189,
appld. [para. 22].

R. v. Cormier (1975), 9 N.S.R.(2d) 687, appld. [para. 26].

STATUTES JUDICIALLY NOTICED:
Criminal Code of Canada, R.S.C. 1970, c. C-34, s.110(1)(c).

COUNSEL:
REINHOLD M. ENDRES, for the appellant;
IAN H. N. PALMETER, Q.C., and TERENCE R. B. DONAHOE, for
the respondent.

This case was heard on January 16, 1978, at Halifax, Nova
Scotia, before COFFIN, COOPER and MACDONALD, JJ.A., of the
Nova Scotia Supreme Court, Appeal Division.

On February 14, 1978, MACDONALD, J.A., delivered the follow-
ing judgment for the Appeal Division:

MACDONALD, J.A.: The Crown applies for leave to appeal
and if granted appeals against the sentence of a fine of
$2,000.00 imposed upon the respondent by His Honour P. J.

0 Hearn in the County Court Judge's Criminal Court of District
Number One following his conviction after a plea of guilty on
the following charge:

that he at or near Halifax in the County of Halifax,
Nova Scotia, between the 1lst day of December 1973 and
the 1lst day of January, 1977, did, being an official of
the government of Nova Scotia, to wit: the Administra-
tor of the Nova Scotia Liquor Licensing Board, unlaw-
fully accept from a person having dealings with the said
government, to wit: Arthur BOUDREAU, e commission, re-
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(MACDONALD, J.A.)

ward, advantage or benefit, and more particularly money;
without having the consent in writing of the head of the
branch of government that employed him, contrary to sec-
tion 110(1)(c) of the Criminal Code.

g
2
£
? L
»

"2 Section 110(1)(c) reads as follows:
110. (1) Every one commits an offence who

(c) being an official or employee of the government,
demands, accepts or offers or agrees to accept from
a person who has dealings with the government a com-
mission, reward, advantage or benefit of any kind
directly or indirectly, by himself or through a mem-
ber of his family or through any one for his benefit,
unless he has the consent in writing of the head of
the branch of government that employs him or of
which he is en official, the proof of which lies
upon him.

3 This section does not involve any elements of fraud,
breach of trust or bribery which are expressly covered else-
where in the Criminal Code. The Crown did not allege or prove
that the monetary benefits received by the respondent from Mr.
Boudreau were given and accepted as bribes. The maximum pen-
alty for a violation of s.110(1) is five years' imprisonment.

4 The statement of facts set forth in the factum of counsel
for the appellant are:

During the time of the commission of the offence
under Section 110(1)(c) of the Criminal Code of Canada,
the Respondent, Robert McGee Ruddock, was the Chief Ad-
ministrative Officer of the Nova Scotia Liquor License
Board. As such, he was responsible for the general ad-
ministration of the Board's affairs, acting under the
direction of the Liquor License Board.

The record shows that the Respondent received, over
a period of four years, the total sum of $1,000.00 from
Arthur Boudresau and his firm, Automatic Amusement Limit-
ed. This benefit was bestowed on the Respondent by
Boudreau on the occasion of four successive Christmas
parties organized by Boudreau in 1973, 1974, 1975 and
1976. On each occasion Mr. Ruddock received an envelope
containing cash in the amounts of $200.00, $200.00,
$300.00 and $300.00 respectively. In additton, Boudreau
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and Automatic Amusement Limited favoured the Respondent
with other gifts such as chocolates and liquor, deliver-
ed to the Ruddock home during the past four Christmas
seasons.

Counsel for the respondent takes no exception to the

foregoing statement of facts but says the following items of
fact appear in the record and should be considered.

During the years that the Respondent received the
Christmas gifts as admitted, nothing was done for Arthur
Boudreau or his firm Automatic Amusement Limited by the
Respondent, which was not done or would not have been
done for any other person having similar limited deal-
ings with the Liquor License Board. The record further
indicates that the Respondent did not have decision-mak-
ing authority in his employment and submissions made to
the Trial Judge on behalf of the Respondent show that
the Respondent was on record with the Liquor License
Board as being opposed to the use of certain kinds of
coin-operated amusement machinery in certain types of
licensed establishments. This certainly is not consis-
tent with any suggestion that the Respondent accepted
Christmas gifts in exchange for favours or to be given
to Boudreau or others.

The record, it is submitted, clearly shows that the
circumstances of the offence do not show a 'bribery' or
'pay-off' situation, and His Honour Judge O Hearn agreed
with this in his decision.

It is acknowledged by the Appellant that the Respon-
dent co-operated fully with the police in their investi-
gations into this offence and into the circumstances
surrounding other matters and offences related to Arthur
Boudreau and his company and other individuals. Submis-
sions are on the record which indicate that the Respon-
dent in accepting these gifts did not think he was doing
anything wrong in a criminal sense. It is difficult to
understand the naivete of the Respondent in this situa-
tion, particularly in view of his responsible position
and his record of faithful and unblemished public ser-
vice, but the Respondent himself has admitted to his
'stupid' and 'unthinking' actions. His Honour Judge
0 Hearn accepted this submission and the record, includ-
ing the character evidence and the pre-sentence report
supports this real lack of 'criminal intent' on the part
of the Respondent.
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The record shows that the Respondent received the
gifts at Christmas parties held by Boudreau and his com-
pany. Submissions to the Trial Judge and to the police
investigators by the Respondent would indicate that it
was a hablt of Boudreau at such parties to give out en-
velopes to other persons. This does not in any way take
away from the seriousness of the offence to which the
Respondent has plead guilty, but it does help in some
way to understand the thinking or perhaps the 'unthink-
ing' on the part of the Respondent.

After hearing the evidence of several character wit-
nesses called on behalf of the respondent and after having re-
ceived a presentence report and hearing submissions of counsel
the trial judge imposed the sentence now challenged by the
Crown. In his remarks on sentencing the trial judge said:

What I am aware of is that in some parts of the gov-
ernment service, it's quite common for people dealing
with the government to give Christmas gifts. I've never
heard of money being given but the liquor and cigars and
that kind of thing are given. I'm aware of this as I
think most members of the community are.

I am also aware that a good many civil servants have
- never heard of this provision of the Criminal Code, so
s that they would probably be quite astonished to find

e that in taking a gift of a turkey or liquor or cigars
from & person contracting with their department that

x: they were in serious breach of the criminal law.

When we lock at this particular instance, however,
there are some other considerations that have to be kept
in mind. First of all, the gifts consisted of money
which I think is most unusual, and not petty cash either.

. And, they continued over a period of years. So that

; it's quite clear that even without any Code provision
this would have occurred to any person aware of the im-
plications that it wasn't in propriety and not merely a
minor one but a fairly substantial one.

.

Quite apart from any intention on the part of the ac-
cused or the other party involved, it's a precautionary
provision of the Code. The mental element involved 1is
simply knowledge of the gift, knowledge of the connec-
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tion of the giver with the government, and willingness
to accept. It does not involve any element of fraud or
breach of trust, or bribery, and without going beyond
the ambit of this case one can imagine that it was a
preparation, but there is no direct evidence of that.
It's just the kind of character that this has, that a
man who operates coin-operated machines and other things
which are used in taverns and who has business with the
government, with this branch of the government, goes out
of his way to be pleasant to one of the officers of the
government in this particular fashion.

But I want to make it clear that it does not involve
bribery or anything that could be called bribery. It is
conduct that is absolutely prohibited if the giver know-
ingly accepts a gift from a person who is dealing with
the government, without the permission of the head of
his department.

So that...I hope to deal with that aspect of any
media misinterpretation of it to make clear what the ac-
cused has pleaded guilty to.

Mr. Ruddock has been an outstanding citizen of his
community and has contributed in many ways to its good.
But, this particular kind of act has to some extent de-
stroyed or at least damaged his power to do good in the
community. Undoubtedly it will affect some of his re-
lationships in what he has been doing, and, of course,
it may result in dismissal from his employment and loss
of substantial pension benefits.

This I don't know. Nobody has said anytning other
than that this is a real possibility. I have to take
it into account on that basis.

But again, here the publicity involved whether it
is true or misleading, I don't know, it certainly adds
to that, and this is part not only of his punishment,
but a part of the damage that he has done by this kind
of conduct. And, it is punishment that rarely gets in-
volved in the public account of the punishment or in
the...even the judicial account of the punishment.
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That is to say, the public do not count this as part
of the sentence ordinarily. They may in such a case as
this if it 1s given that kind of publicity.

The public ordinarily do not take into account all
these losses, nor do the cases cited or the other cases
that touch on this usually take into account this kind
of thing except very cursorily. What you find cited are
sentences of imprisonment, sentences of fines, dis-
charges, and probation things of that kind. And yet this
is a very real part, real consequence and therefore a
real part of the punishment involved in the conviction
of this nature.

The primary purpose of criminal penalties is the pro-
tection of the public by eliminating the conduct that is
prohibited. This is done incidentally or mediately,
that is by the means of various techniques of which the
principal are rehabilitation and deterrence. Deterrence
applies not only to the accused but to others. In this
case, I am quite satisfied that as far as the accused is
concerned, deterrence of him personally is no longer re-
quired prospectively.

There is, however, an element of deterrence of the
public and especially of the people in the employ of the
government and those dealing with them which is important
here and will have to be taken into account. Although,
of course, it cannot absolutely dominate the picture.
There is also an element in all criminal proceedings of
denunciation of the offence, and that has to be taken
into account.

The accused should have been aware of the impropri-
ety. I cannot understand myself how he could let himself
accept them in the circumstances of his employment.
Counsel has described it as 'stupid' and 'unthinking',
perhaps that's a way of putting it. But they certainly
were grossly improper and extraordinary and a discharge
of either absolute or conditional is not appropriate.

...There is no scintilla of evidence before me of any
other impropriety, everything else I have heard has been
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to this credit and I do not think it is an appropriate
case for imprisonment...

The appellant desires to appeal against the sentence on
the grounds that it inadequately reflects the element of de-
terrence particularly deterrence to others and that is is in-
adequate having regard to the nature of the offence and the
circumstances of the respondent.

Thg element of deterrence has two aspects. The speci-
fic, i.e., to deter the offender and the general, i.e., to
deter others. By his conviction the appellant has lost his
employment with the government which he had since February 1,
1968. He doubtless has suffered great humiliation and em-
barrassment. The presentence report indicates that he has
suffered great emotional strain as a result of this matter.
He i1s a man of forty-six years of age, married with two grown
sons and has no previous criminal record. His conviction for
this offence with all the attendant ramifications thereof,
some of which I have referred to, has, no doubt, graphically
brought home to him and gravity of the matter. In light of
his background it seems to me that reformation and rehabilita-
tion are not factors that are of any real significance here.
Of major importance, however, is general, or third party, de-
terrence. In R. v. Cooper (No. 2) (1977), 35 C.C.C.(2d) 35,
Arnup J.A., in delivering the judgment of the Ontario Court
of Appeal said in respect of s.110(b) and (c) (pp.36-37):

Section 110(1)(b) is part of a section found in the
Criminal Code beneath the heading 'Frauds upon the gov=-
ernment'. It is a section which has been in the same
terms for many years. In our view it creates a serious
offence. Its purpose is to ensure and maintain the com-
plete integrity of the public service. It does so by
providing that any person having dealings of any kind
with the Government who confers a benefit of any kind
upon an employee or official of the Government 'with
respect to those dealings' commits an offence punishable
by imprisonment for five years. Section 110(1)(ec) con=-
tains co-relative provisions making it an offence, with
the same sanction, for an employee of the Government to
accept a benefit or advantage, directly or indirectly,
from a person who has dealings with the Government.

It has been urged by counsel for the Crown that the
paramount consideration in this case is one of general
deterrence. We agree with that submission. In our
view, it is important for the business community to re-
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y alize the seriousness of the offence which s.110(1)(b)
creates. It 1s equally important that the public at
large should understand that the law stands ready to pun-
ish severely persons who breach the section, and in ap-
propriate cases to punish those officials or employees
of the Government who accept benefits of the kind prohib-

ited, and thereby contravene the provisions of s.110(1)
(e).

- The factual situation was summarized by Arnup, J.A., as
follows (p.35):

The facts upon which the conviction was based are
summarized in the judgment of this Court: see 22 C.C.C.
(2d) 273, 7 O.R.(2d) 429, 29 C.R.N.S. 293. The appel-
lant is L3 years of age and has no prior conviction.

The benefits conferred upon the employee of the federal
Government consisted of four separate return air fares
to Florida, and hospitality at the appellant's ranch for
four weekends, on two of which the employee's wife also
attended. It was said by Judge Graburn that there was
no suggestion that the Government employee had acted im-
properly or corruptly in approving or recommending large
grants to two companies controlled by the appellant. The
Jury did, of course, find that the benefits were confer-
red 'in respect of' (the appellant's) dealings with the
Government...

The employee of the government who received the benefits
from Mr. Cooper as described above was one Gerald William
McKendry. He was charged under s8.110(1)(c) of the Code, plead-
ed guilty and was sentenced to six months' imprisonment by His
Honour Judge Lyon of the Ontario County Court Judge's Criminal
Court in and for the Judicial District of York. (Sept. 16,
1977 - unreported) The total benefits received by him amounted
to approximately $1,200.00. The background of the matter is
more detailed in R. v. Cooper (1975), 22 C.C.C.(2d) 273, and
are that McKendry was employed by the federal government, in
DREE, as a director of the Special Analysis Group. Two of Mr.
Cooper's companies had made application for DREE grants in the
amounts of $617,000.00 and $119,970.00. The latter application
was apparently granted by McKendry himself but there was no
corruption involved and the approval by McKendry of the
$119,970.00 was entirely legitimate and proper.

At the relevant time Mr. McKendry was fifty-three years
of age. As a result of the charge he was dismissed from the
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employ of the government without compensation. He was de-
scribed by the trial judge as "a man of impeccable character,
highly thought of by very responsible individuals...he has
been very active in charitable matters...and certainly has
been much more than what we perhaps might call an "average
citizen" in terms of community participation and in terms of
response to community needs...."

Judge Lyon, after expressing the view that rehabilita-
tion of Mr. McKendry was not a significant factor, went on to
say:

++:Mr. McKendrey occupied what appears to me a relative-
ly high position in terms of his responsibilities, and
the trust that was placed in him. No doubt he had a
significant influence in terms of applications, whether
he was able to approve them or whether it was a question
of referring them to his superior. And in his position
of processing these applications for Government grants
there were large sums of public money involved. The
amounts have been referred to in the Statement of Facts.

It's obvious in my view that altogether apart from
Section 110(c) that the appearance of objective, uncor-
rupted impartiality must be of the highest importance.
This indeed is an ethic which has been given the full
support of the Criminal Law in the section that I have
made reference to, and the reason for that, I think, is
obvious because the appearance of Justice is equally im-
portant as Justice itself. And the appearance of hon=-
esty and integrity in dealings by Government employees
particularly where large sums of public money is involv-
ed must be at all costs preserved lest the failure to do
so could result in de facto corruption, one perhaps
sliding imperceptably into the other. It is clearly for
this reason that Section 110(c) has been enacted.

I previously mentioned the high office, the large
sums, the nature of the Legislation dealing with grants,
and considered from that point of view, it is my conclu-
sion that the appearance of total rectitude, probity and
honesty is therefore of the greatest importance; it is
important to a high degree both to other Government em-
ployees and to members of the public, and in particular
to the business community who may have dealings with the
Government.
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+..80me period of incarceration is called for in
order to give full weight to the two elements of deter-
rence and condemnation.

I'\l.

. One has to distinguish the positions held by Mr. McKendry
f§5lnd the respondent respectively. The latter had no decision

2 making power with respect to the granting or refusing of liquor
@ licenses or other allied matters. Mr. McKendry on the other

@K hand apparently had the power to approve large DREE grants or,
g at least as Judge Lyon said, "had a significant influence in

y. terms of applications..." This to my mind is a vital distinc-
o tion and no doubt led Judge Lyon to say '"the appearance of
'Eihonesty and integrity in dealings by Government employees

¥, particularly where large sums of public money is involved must
'~j**be at all costs preserved lest the failure to do so could re-

) In McKendry the possibility of actual corruption exist-
f¥ ed. In the present case even if the respondent became totally
¢, corrupt and dishonest there is nothing to indicate that he had
i the power in any way to use his office to assist his corruptor
e, —not so Mr. McKendry.

In R, v. Jackson (1977), 21 N.S.R.(2d) 17; 28 A.P.R. 17,
the facts were that a thirty-eight year old policeman with
I over ten years service, struck and killed a girl while driving
a4 motor vehicle. He was off duty at the time. He left the
scene of the accident and tried to conceal his complicity by
§», misleading police investigators. He was charged with, and con-
victed of, leaving the scene of an accident contrary to s.233
(2) (c) of the Criminal Code. The trial judge sentenced him
to thirty days' imprisonment. On a cross-appeal this Court
increased the sentence to imprisonment for one year. There,
as here, rehabilitation and reformation of the accused was not
really a material consideration. MacKeigan, C.J.N.S., in de-
livering the judgment of the Court said (p.20):

I suggest that the relative weight or mix of the
three basic factors -- deterrence of the offender, de-
terrence of others and rehabilitation and reform --
varies not only with reference to the nature, history and
character of the offender, but also with the kind of of-
fence. And to the mixture in any given case must often
be added a fourth factor often similar in its influence
but by no means identical to 'deterrence', namely, the
need to express social repudiation and abhorrence of a
particular crime by, to use a largely outmoded word,
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'punishment' of the offender. Some crimes by their na-
ture, and the nature of the offender, require little
element of deterrence or punishment when it comes to
sentence; many so-called crimes of passion may fall in
this category, such as The Queen v. Cormier (1975), 9
N.S.R.(2d) 687, where this Court upheld a suspended sen-
tence for manslaughter of a husband by his wife, & sen-
tence imposed by Chief Justice Cowan.

Conversely, other crimes, and, I respectfully in-
clude the hit and run offence in this category when per=-
sonal injury or death has occurred, are recognized by
Parliament and society as requiring a large measure of
imprisonment, even though, almost always, the offender
requires no reform from criminel ways and where the hor-
ror of the event and trial alone largely deters him from
any repetition.

In my opinion there are varying degrees of culpability
envisaged by s.110(c). By that I mean that it seems to me
that a government official who directly demands a commission,
etc., from some one who has dealings with the government on
the pretext that unless such commission is forthcoming he will
sidetrack such dealings, has committed a more serious breach
of the section than say, Mr. Tanguay. (R. v. Tanguay (1976),
24 C.C.C.(2d) 77), who accepted a colour television set valued
at $305.00 from a contractor doing business with Central
Mortgage and Housing Corporation (of which Mr. Tanguay was as-
sistant director). In his case the Quebec Court of Appeal
substituted an absolute discharge for the suspension of sen-
tence ordered by the trial court. The court was obviously in-
fluenced by the fact that anything less than an absolute or
conditional discharge would result in Mr. Tanguay's loss of
employment. He had approximately twenty-five years government
service.

I would emphasize what the trial judge said and what I
mentioned earlier, namely, that in the Crown's case bribery 1s
not a factor here. All that the facts reveal and all that the
Crown alleges, is that the respondent accepted a total of
$1,000.00 from Mr. Boudreau without first obtaining the con-
sent in writing of the head of the branch of government that
employed him.

This matter has received wide publicity through the news
media and, no doubt, the great majority of civil servants are
aware of it. If it consisted only of the respondent receiving
Christmas presents of relatively small value then it would not
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B¥ demand overly severe sanction. It well may be argued that the
ﬁ'Jfacts here indicate that what occurred transcends the mere
igiving and accepting of Christmas gifts. In four successive
iyears the respondent accepted from Mr. Boudreau, at Christmas
time, envelopes containing respectively $200.00, $200.00,

% $300.00 and $300.00. The suspicion of course is that these
zﬂ_were not gifts at all but rather payments for services render-
>E'ed. or to be rendered, by the respondent to Mr. Boudreau.

,- There is, however, no evidence to confirm such suspicion.

E The purpose of general deterrence is to bring home to

';ﬁ others the serious consequences attendant upon certain criminal

'+ conduct. Such deterrence can be accomplished, or achieved, in

& some cases without the imposition of a custodial sentence. In

B’ R, v. Morrissette (1971), 1 C.C.C.(2d) 307, Cullitom, C.J.S.,
. saild at p.310, "...it may be in exceptional cases that the ef-

= fects which result from the prosecution itself constitute suf-

¢." ficient punishment." 1If that be so then surely in some cases

. the prosecution itself and the effects thereof will meet the

< need for general deterrence.

In the present case the main consideration is to impress
upon government officials and employees (and indeed those who
have dealings with the government) that if they accept anything
(without the written consent of their department head) from
people doing business with the government, they have breached
the criminal law.

As a result of accepting money from Mr. Boudreau, with-
out the required consent, the respondent has lost his employ-
ment with the government, a fact apparently not definite when
he was sentenced by Judge O Hearn, and has acquired a crimina.
record which may adversely affect his ability to acquire new
employment. Certainly I think it fair to assume that he will
not again be employed by any government. All these circum-

* 8tances no doubt are now well known to other civil servants.
If such do not act as a deterrent to others in the government
service then I frankly doubt whether the addition of a term
of Imprisonment will do so. This, to me, is the crux of the
ﬁg matter.,

As this Court pointed out in R. v. Melanson (1976), 18
N.S.R.(2d) 189; 20 A.P.R. 189 at p.192:

Section 614 of the Criminal Code imposes an obliga-
tion on courts of appeal to consider the fitness of the
sentence appealed against and a duty to go into the mat-
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ter fully and to consider each appeal from sentence
with the utmost care even though the sentence on its
face does not shock the court by its excessiveness or
its inadequacy.

This I have done. Putting suspicions aside, what the
respondent has been shown to have done here does not, in my
view, manifest the same criminality as the actions of Mr.
Jackson in R. v. Jackson, supra, or show the corruption poten-
tial that existed in the McKendry case, supra.

I must confess that this case has caused me deep con-
cern. Indeed, I initially felt that the sentence was so in-
adequate as to be wrong and that a jail term should be impos-
ed. My difficulty, quite frankly, nas been to divorce from
my mind the element of bribery. I have great trouble in ac-
cepting the fact that a man in the government position the re-
spondent held would be given and would accept, the amounts of
money involved here unless such were clandestine payments --
in other words, bribes. I repeat again, however, that it is
not the position of the Crown that these were bribe payments.
There is also no evidence that the respondent did, or had the
power to do, anything to facilitate the granting of a tavern
license or to do anything else in connection with liquor li-
censes and allied matters in return for any of the cash gifts
he received from Mr. Boudreau. I can, and shall, but consider
the matter in the light of the charge, the provisions of s.
110(c) of the (Code and the facts submitted.

Bearing in mind that the purpose of imprisonment here
would be solely to deter others from doing what the respon-
dent did, I cannot with certainty say that it is impossible
to achieve such purpose without imprisonment. As I have al-
ready said, it well may be that general deterrence has been
accomplished by the publicity resulting from the apprehension
and conviction of the respondent and his resulting loss of em-
ployment, and therefore that those in government service who
would not be deterred from doing what the respondent did by
knowing what has happened to him to date, would probably not
be deterred by the imposition of imprisonment on him now.

In R. v. Cormier (1975), 9 N.S.R.(2d) 687, I had occa-
sion to say (pp.694--5) in relation to the powers of this
Court on sentence appeals as set forth in s.614 of the Crim-
thal Code:

. . . . ¥ . L)
..this Court is required to consider the 'fitness
of the sentence imposed, but this does not mean that a
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sentence is to be deemed improper merely because the
members of this Court feel that they themselves would
have imposed a different one; apart from misdirection
or non-direction on the proper principles a sentence
should be varied only if the Court is satisfied that it
1s clearly excessive or inadequate in relation to the
offence proven or to the record of the accused.

It well may be that the trial judge was too lenient in
light of the charge, the facts and the other matters I have
referred to. I cannot, however, be sure that he was. This
case on its facts appears to fall somewhere between the
Tanguay and McKendrey cases, supra. Justice, of course, must
~-~always be tempered with mercy, giving proper weight to such
principle and divorcing from my mind and sinister suspicions
ylelded by the facts, I do not think that it can be said that
the trial judge committed any error in principle or that the
sentence is clearly inadequate.

8 In the result I would grant leave to appeal because the
matter 1s certainly arguable, but for the reasons I have given,
would dismiss the appeal.

Appeal dismissed.
Editor: D.C.R. Olmstead
rmb
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Nova Scotia Supreme Court, Appeal Division
Coffin, Hart and Macdonald, JJ.A,
November 2, 1978,

CRIMINAL LAW - TOPIC 410
Offences against the administration of law and justice -
Corruption of officials - Acceptance by government offic-
ials of benefits from persons dealing with the government
- What constitutes dealings with the government - The ac-
cused, a tax collection officer, accepted an air hockey
game from an operator of an automatic amusement machine
business - The operator of the business was in arrears in
his remittances of sales tax and the operator negotiated
through the accused an adjustment of the arrears - The Nova
Scotia Court of Appeal held that the operator had dealings
with the government for purposes of s, 110(c) of the Crim-
inal Code of Canada (see paragraph 33).

CRIMINAL LAW - TOPIC 4431
Verdicts and discharges - Conditional discharge in lieu of
conviction - The accused, a tax collection officer, was
convicted of accepting a benefit from persons dealing with
the Nova Scotia government - The accused had no criminal
record, the benefit conferred was an isolated instance, and
the accused received inadequate and uninformed advice from
his superiors prior to his acceptance of the benefit - The
Nova Scotia Court of Appeal affirmed a conditional discharge
of the accused in lieu of a conviction pursuant to s. 662.1
of the Criminal Code of Canada.

Summary:

This case arose out of a charge against a government offic-
ial of accepting benefits from persons dealing with the Nova
Scotia government., The trial judge sitting with a jury found
the accused guilty but granted the accused a conditional dis-
charge in lieu of conviction pursuant to s, 662.1 of the Crim-
inal Code, The Crown appealed from sentence to the Nova Sco-
tia Court of Appeal, The accused cross-appealed.

The Nova Scotia Court of Appeal dismissed the cross-appeal
and also dismissed the Crown's appeal from sentence,

CASES JUDICIALLY NOTICED:
R. v. Kolstad (1959), 123 C.C.C. 170, ref'd to. [para. 30].
R. v. Cooper (No. 2) (1977), 35 C.C.C.(2d) 35; 14 N.R, 181
(s.C.C.), ref'd to, [para. 31].
R. v. Dalton (1977), 18 N.S.R.(Zd) 555; 20 A,P.R. 555,
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ref'd to., [para, 45].

R. v. Fallofield (1974), 13 C.C.C. 450, ref'd to. [para.
oL I

R. v. Sanchez-Pino (1973), 11 C.C.C. 53, ref'd to, [para.
45].

R. v. Tanquay (1975), 24 C.C.C.(2d) 77, ref'd to. [para.
47].

R. v. Sinasac (1977), 35 C.C.C,(2d) 81, ref'd to, [para.
50].

R. v. Cormier (1974), 9 N.S.R.(2d) 687, ref'd to. [para.
51].

R. v. Boudreau (1978), 25 N,S.R.(2d) 63; 36 A.P.R. 63,
ref'd to, [para. 52].

R. v. Ruddock (1978), 25 N.S,R.(2d) 77; 36 A.P.R. 77, ref'd
to. [para. 53].

R. v. Jackson (1977), 21 N.S.R.(2d) 17; 28 A.P.R. 17, ref'd
to. [para. 54].

STATUTES JUDICIALLY NOTICED:
Criminal Code of Canada, R.S.C. 1970, c. C-34, s, 662,1,

COUNSEL:
REINHOLD M, ENDRES, for the Crown,
JOEL E, PINK, for the accused.

This appeal was heard by COFFIN, HART, and MACDONALD, JJ.A.,
of the Appeal Division of the Nova Scotia Supreme Court at
Halifax, Nova Scotia on October 10, 1978,

The judgment of the Nova Scotia Court of Appeal was deliv-
ered by COFFIN, J.A., on November 2, 1978,

COFFIN, J.A.: This is an application by the Crown for
leave to appeal from sentence and if granted an appeal from
sentence, There is also a cross-appeal by the respondent, Reg-
inald Roy Williams, against convictien,

The appellant was tried by a judge sitting with a jury
and on March 21, 1978 found guilty by the jury on a charge that
he "at or near Halifax, in the County of Halifax, Nova Scotia
between the 8th day of November, 1976 and the lst day of Jan-
uary, 1977 did, being an employee of the government of Nova
Scotia, to wit: Chief Collections Officer, Health Services
Tax Department, unlawfully accept from a person having dealings
with the said government to wit: Arthur Boudreau, a commis-
slon, reward, advantage or benefit and more particularly, an
air hockey game, without the consent in writing of the head of
the branch of government that employed him, contrary to Sec-
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tion 110(1)(c) of the Criminal Code."

On March 29, 1978 the trial judge, after hearing repre-
sentations by counsel on sentencing, proceeded to sentence the
respondent.

He granted a discharge, conditional upon the respond-
ent's complying for a period of one year with the standard con-
ditions of a probation order as set forth in s. 663(2) of the
Criminal Code,

The section under which the respondent was charged and
found guilty by the jury is as follows:

110, (1) Every one commits an offence who

(¢) being an official or employee of the govern-
ment , demands, accepts or offers or agrees to ac-
cept from a person who has dealings with the gov-
ernment a commission, reward, advantage or bene-
fit of any kind directly or indirectly, by him-
self or through a member of his family or through
any one for his benefit, unless he has the con-
sent in writing of the head of the branch of gov-
ernment that employs him or of which he is an of=-
ficial, the proof of which lies upon himj; . . .

The Court was assisted by an agreed statement of facts,
which was presented to the jury by Mr, Thomas in his opening
address on behalf of the Crown.

The respondent, Reginald Roy Williams, was an employee
of the Government of Nova Scotia, as Chief Collection Officer,
Health Services Tax Division, Provincial Tax Commission.

Arthur Boudreau was an officer of Automatic Amusements
Company Limited, which carried on business in Nova Scotia and
which was a registered vendor under the Health Services Act.
The Act required that the Company collect health services tax-
es as agent for the Minister of Finance and forward them to
the Provincial Tax Commission,

Section 11 of the Health Services Taxr Act, R,S.N.S.
1967, c. 126, as amended by Stats. of N,S. 1969, c. 49, s. 1,
provides that such a company "... shall be deemed to be an
agent for the Minister and as such shall levy and collect the
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In 1972 Automatic Amusements was assessed for $30,819.80
for tax collected, but not remitted to the Crown. He was al-
lowed to pay in instalments, but in October, 1976 when this
amount had been reduced to $12,000.00 Arthur Boudreau sought
ministerial relief and called the respondent, Reginald Roy Wil-
liams, suggesting that the interest already paid in the month-
ly instalments on the assessment be applied to reduce the prin-
cipal.

The subsequent history of the matter as set out in the
agreed statement of facts, is as follows:

1. Arthur Boudreau sent a typewritten proposal to
the respondent who in turn sent a copy of that proposal
to the Provincial Tax Commissioner, D. K. Currie, and the
Director of Health Services Tax Administration, R. R,
Dompierre,

2, The proposal was rejected by the Commission and
Mr. Boudreau was so advised by the respondent,

3. On November 9, 1976 Arthur Boudreau sent another
letter to the respoudent, who prepared a summation of the
account for the Minister of Finance and the Provincial
Tax Commission,

4. On November 25, 1976 the Minister agreed to set-
tle the account for $5,000 and apply the interest already
paid to the outstanding principal, the money to be paid
not later than the 31st of December, 1976,

5. On December 22, 1976 Arthur Boudreau with the
consent of the respondent sent an air hockey game to the
respondent's residence in care of A. K. Williams, his
8-year old son,

6. No payment was made for this game.

There was some question as to the exact instructions
which the respondent Williams received from his superiors in
this matter,

Mr. D, K. Currie on direct examination said that Mr., Wil-
liams had asked him about the policy in the matter of gifts,
Mr. Currie said that he checked with the Minister of Finance
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and as a result, he advised the respondent that the policy was
not to take gifts,

In cross-examining Mr. Currie, Mr. Pink suggested that
what he had said to the respondent was:-

Off-hand Roy, I can see nothing wrong with it, because
it's probably the way that you have explained the facts
to me. Mr. Boudreau is really giving it as an act of
appreciation, and as you have not nor are you in any
position to do any favours for him, and anything that
you have done has been presented by yourself to me, and
authorized by the Minister of Finance.

Mr. Currie's reply was that he did not recall the con-
versation but parts of what had been put to him in the ques-
tion ",.. could very well have been said",

On direct examination Mr. Currie said that he indicated
to Mr, Williams that "if he wanted the game he should pay for
itll .

Mr. Williams stated that he had no power to vary assess-
ments, and that in the years 1972 - 1973 there was no favor-
itism shown to Arthur Boudreau in the matter of late payments
nor did he in any way favor Automatic Amusements.

As to the gift itself, the respondent testified that
early in November, 1976 he was anxious to purchase an air hoc-
key game for his son Andy for a Christmas present, On being
informed by Automatic Amusement, after inquiries, that the
price would be $117.50 or $139.50, he advised Arthur Boudreau
that he had decided not to purchase the game, In fact he lat-
er purchased one from Canadian Tire,

Subsequently, Mr. Boudreau told him that he and his sons
had met at a directors' meeting and the company had agreed to
give the game to his son Andy. This was after the settlement
of the assessment,

The company was quite insistent that the game be given
to the boy and it was on receiving this information that the
respondent had his interview with Mr. Currie, It was then
that Mr. Currie is quoted by him as using the words - "Off-
hand Roy, I can see nothing wrong, as it is probably - as Mr.
Boudreau has put it, he is giving the machine out of apprecia-

Elon waw
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Mr. Williams acknowledged that shortly after this con-

". versation Mr, Currie called him on the telephone, and advised

him that he was unable to get in contact with Mr, Peter Nichol-
son, the Minister of Finance, but he had spoken to the Deputy
Minister, Mr. Leo Lacusta, who replied that ",.,., due to govern-
ment involvements of the day and public opinion, it may be best
that I not accept the machine."

The respondent explained why he finally agreed that the
machine should be sent to the boy. He said it was the persis-
tence on the part of the company - he had turned down the ma-
chine 25 or 30 times - and he felt that there was a '"liaison"
built up between the Provincial Tax Commission and Automatic
Amusement -

The account was in up to date, and everything was in or-
der, and I didn't want to see this deteriorate,

The other game was returned on December 28, 1976 to Can-
adian Tire,

All this material was before the jury, who brought in the
verdict of guilty,

I propose to consider the cross-appeal first,

Only two of the grounds set out in the notice of cross-
appeal were before this Court:

1, That the learned trial judge erred in law in in-
terpreting s. 110(1)(c) in that he held as a matter of
law that Automatic Amusements Co, Ltd. was a person hav-
ing dealings with the government pursuant to said sec-
tion,

2, That the learned trial judge erred in law in his
interpretation of the required mens rea necessary for a
charge made under s. 110(1)(c).

As to the first ground, Mr., Justice MacIntosh instructed
the jury that the word "dealings'" is synonymous with the phrase
""dealings of any kind", which appears in s. 110(1)(b) and that
both phrases connote an unrestricted and an unqualified appli-
cation,

He further told the jury that dealings concerning the re-
duction of the assessment with Boudreau were dealings with the
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government.

In my respectful opinion, the Crown must succeed on this
point, I accept the respondent's argument that Automatic
Amusements Co. Limited and Arthur Boudreau did not act as
"agents' of the Minister of Finance in seeking ministerial re-
lief. The Agency was limited to the collection and the re-
mitting of the tax. Otherwise the position of the company was
merely that of a debtor.

Counsel for Reginald Roy Williams referred us to A, v.
Kolstad (1959), 123 c.C.C, 170, where Macdonald, J., said that
the words in s. 110(1)(b) "dealings of any kind" indicate that
Parliament did not intend the word ''dealings' to be construed
in a narrow sense,

Mr. Pink urged us to conclude from that paragraph that
we must construe s. 110(1)(c) in a narrow and restricted
sense, I accept the argument on behalf of the Crown, who re-
ferred us to the comments of Arnup, J.A., in R, v. Cooper
(No. 2) (1977), 35 C.C.C.(2d) 35; 14 N.R, 181 (s.C.C.), at
pp. 36-37, that there is a close relationship between s. 110
(1)(b) and s, 110(1)(c).

Section 110(1)(b) is part of a section found in the
Criminal Code beneath the heading 'Frauds upon the gov-
ernment'. It is a section which has been in the same
terms for many years. In our view it creates a serious
offence. Its purpose is to ensure and maintain the com-
plete integrity of the public service, It does so by
providing that any person having dealings of any kind
with the Government who confers a benefit of any kind
upon an employee or official of the Government 'with
respect to those dealings' commits an offence punish-
able by imprisonment for five years. Sectiocon 110(1)(e)
contains co-relative provisions making it an offence,
with the same sanction, for an employee of the Govern-
ment to accept a benefit or advantage, directly or in-
directly, from a person who has dealings with the Gov-
ernment.

It has been urged by counsel for the Crown that the
paramount consideration in this case is one of general
deterrence. We agree with that submission. In our view,
it is important for the business community to realize
the seriousness of the offence which s. 110(1)(b)
creates., It is equally important that the public at
large should understand that the law stands ready to
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punish severely persons who breach the section, and in
appropriate cases to punish those officials or employees
of the Government who accept bzaefits of the kind pro-
hibited, and thereby contravens the provisions of s, 110

(L)(e).

In Cooper, the Court of Appeal reduced the sentence from
a term of 18 months to one of 12 months.

In my respectful cpinicn it is impossible to say that
the negotiations between the company and Arthur Boudreau on the
one hand and the officer of the Minister of Finance on the oth-
er were not dealings within the meaning of s. 110(1)(c).

As to the second ground in the cross-appeal, it is clear
that the learned trial judge in his instructions to the jury
pointed out that the section forbade an employee such as Regi-
nald Roy Williams in the absence of the consent in writing from
the head of his branch to accept any benefit from a person he
knows has dealings with the government,

When the trial judge said to the jury that the person
must know that the benefactor had dealings with the government,
he indicated clearly that knowledge was an element in the of-
fence. Again, earlier in nis charge to the jury he said that
the Crown must prove beyond a reasonable doubt that the "ac-
cused knowingly accepted from Arthur Boudreau an air hockey
game', [emphasis added]

I would therefore reject this second ground of the cross-
appeal.

The Crown's appeal on sentence is based on the argument
that there is an inequity between the sentence imposed on the
respondent and that imposed on others in other courts.

Mr. Endres urged that there was not sufficient emphasis
on general deterrence nor was there adequate consideration to
condemnation of offences of this type.

It should be said here that there is some distinction
between the facts in the Cooper case and those under consider-
ation in this appeal. In the first place, Cooper was charged
under s, 110(1)(b) and the benefits which he had conferred on
the employee in question consisted of four separate return air
fares to Florida, and hospitality at the appellant's ranch on
four weekends, on two of which the employee's wife also at-
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tended. The government employee had more power than the pres-
ent respondent in that he had approved and recommended large
grants to two of the companies which the appellant controlled,
I realize that this is not a vital distinction because as Arn-
up, J.A,, clearly points out an offence under s. 110(1)(c) is
very serious. However, the gift to the respondent's son was
very small compared to the benefits in other cases.

There is a similarity in the two cases in that Cooper
had no prior record of conviction, nor did the respondent Wil-
liams., In fact the evidence discloses that Williams up to the
time of this offence was a man of impeccable character. As a
matter of fact, Mr. D,K. Currie in the cross-examination was
asked about his character and the following exchange appears
in the evidence:

Q. Is it not a fact Mr. Currie that you always relt
and to this very day do feel that Reginald Roy Wil-
liams is a competent, honest, and a faithful civil
servant?

A. I do.

This question and answer came immediately after Mr. Cur-
rie had stated that although he had been with the government
since 1955, he had no knowledge of the existence of the sec-
tions of the (Criminal Code in question,

As Mr. Endres pointed out in his argument, there were
two Dree grants of $617,000 and $119,970 in the Cooper case.
There was nothing wrong with the grants per se, and there was
apparently no corruption involved. The total benefits received
by the government official in the nature of the trips to which
I referred amounted to $1200. McKendry, the official, was al-
so described as a man of impeccable character.

The Crown in the present appeal makes the point that
there is not sufficient distinction between the positions held
by McKendry, the official in the Cooper case, and the respond-
ent, Mr, Williams, The test is the '"appearance of honesty and
integrity in dealings by government employees ...", and it is
immaterial whether or not the official in question had any de-
cision making power. The offence under s. 110(1)(c) is the
acceptance of a benefit without having first obtained the con-
sent. No other intent is required under that specific subsec-
tion.

I have already mentioned the Crown's submission that the
sentence does not adequately reflect the element (a) of general
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;. deterrence and (b) of condemnation. This was the phrase used

by His Honour Judge Lyon in the Ontario County Court Judges'
Criminal Court in the judicial district of York in the Jueen
v. McKendry, unreported and dated September 16, 1977. McKen-
dry had pleaded guilty to an offence under s. 110(1) (c) on the
same facts which appeared in the Cocper case. Judge Lyon said
that he did not consider that it was in the public interest to
grant a discharge '"... on the twin grounds that the element of
general deterrence and condemnation by the courts would not be
satisfied by such a disposition."”

It is true that this Court has not always approved a con-
ditional discharge. For example, in A. v. Dalton (1977), 18
N.S.R.(2d) 555; 20 A.P.R. 555, where the charge was possession
of marihuana contrary to s. 3(1) of the Narcottiec Control Act,
MacKeigan, C.J.N.S. gave careful consideration to such cases
as R. v, Fallofield (1974), 13 C.C.C. 450, and the remarks of
Farris, C.J.B.C., at pp. 454-5 and also R. v. Sanchez-Pino
(1973), 11 Cc.C.C. 53, - particularly the comments of Arnup,
J.A., at p. 59. Chief Justice MacKeigan said at pp. 560-561:

As indicated by Mr. Justice Arnup, some cases of
very young first offenders of good character charged with
mere possession of marihuana may be candidates for dis-
charge, but only, I suggest, where not only is the of-
fence trivial but the offender is young, immature or im-
petuous., Then in the discretion of the trial judge dis-
charge might be considered appropriate--but I emphasize,
with Chief Justice Farris and Mr. Justice Arnup, that no
fixed category can or should be defined. We can only
suggest general guidelines, realizing that relevant fac-
tors may vary greatly and may often be indefinable and
must be left to be applied by the instincts and Judgment
of a wise trial Jjudge.

In Fallofield the Court set aside a provincial court
judge's refusal to grant a discharge on a guilty plea of un-
lawful possession of some scraps of carpet valued at $33.07.
In Sanchez-Pino - a shop-lifting situation, the Ontario Court
of Appeal refused to interfere with the trial judge's discre-
tion,

I should mention R. v, Tanquay (1975), 24 C.C.C.(2d) 77.
This was a conviction under s. 110(1) (c) where the trial judge
suspended the passing of sentence, The gift in question was
a colour television set, the cost of which was $305,
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Owen, J.A., took into consideration the fact that if the
appeal against sentence were dismissed, the appellant would in
all probability lose his position and benefits accrued since
1950, which would not be the case if he were granted an abso-
lute discharge, The appeal from sentence was allowed and an
absolute discharge was granted.

The respondent before us has already lost his position.

In k. v. Stnasac (1977), 35 C.C.C.(2d) 81, the Ontario
Court of Appeal set aside an absolute discharge where bene-
fits for which the charge was laid under s. 110(1)(c), amount-
ed to $28,000 and the offences were committed over a lengthy
period of time. Fines totalling $1,000 were imposed.

It is well established that our duty is to consider the
"fitness'" of the sentence. As Macdonald, J,A., said in R. v.
Cormier (1974), 9 N,S,R.(2d) 687, at pp. 694-5:

. . apart from misdirection or non-direction on the
proper principles a sentence should be varied only if
the Court is satisfied that it is clearly excessive or
inadequate in relation to the offence proven or to the
record of the accused.

R. v. Boudreau (1978), 25 N.S.R,(2d) 63; 36 A.P.R, 63,
was mentioned in argument. Here there were four charges, two
under s, 110(1)(d) and two under s. 110(1)(b), The trial judge
imposed a sentence of consecutive three-month terms of im-
prisonment on each charge. The reasons for the dismissal of
the appeal from sentence in the Boudreau case and the emphasis
on deterrence were clearly set out in the judgment. Macdon-
ald, J.A., at p. 73 distinguished both Tanguay and Sinasac.

In R. v. Ruddock (1978), 25 N.S.R.(2d) 77: 36 A.P.R. 77,
the factual situation was similar to that in this appeal, but
there were important differences. The past record of the re-
spondent Ruddock had been good, but he did accept Christmas
gifts of sums of money in individual envelopes from Arthur
Boudreau over a period of four years totalling $1,000. The
charge was under s. 110(1) (c) of the Code and the sentence
from which the Crown appealed was a fine of $2,000.

Macdonald, J.A.,, reviewed the authorities, including
some of those which I have already mentioned. He referred at
length to R. v. Cooper (No. 2), supra and R. v. Jackson (1977),
21 N.S.R.(2d) 17; 28 A.P,R. 17, but nevertheless concluded
that the sentence of a fine of $2,000 should not be disturbed.
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In the case now under appeal, the trial judge gave a very
full and careful statement of his reasons for dealing with the
sentence of the respondent in the manner which he adopted. He
quoted most of the authorities to which I have referred in
these reasons and just before he imposed sentence, he made the
following significant statement:

Here we have no fraud, no bribery involved, no at-
tempt to conceal the gift to his son, the seeking of ad-
vice from supericrs, and the ccnsequent inadequate and
uninformed advice as to the criminal ramifications in-
volved, and even - as stated by learned Crown prosecu-
tor - the words, or the effect of the words were 'It
might be best not to accept the gift.'

As I have stated before, if such advice had been a
clear and unequivocal 'no' to the acceptance of any gift,
I am sure the accused would not be before this Court to-
day, and I trust that more effective steps have since
been taken to impress upon all government employees the
seriousness and the scope of Section 110(1)(c) of the
Criminal Code.

In my view in granting a conditional discharge, the trial
judge did not err in principle, nor can it be said that the
sentence was not fit,

I would dismiss the cross-appeal, grant leave to the ap-
pellant herein to appeal and dismiss the appeal.

Appeal dismissed.
Cross-appeal dismissed.
Editor: Eriec B. Appleby
edp
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FEDITOR'S NOTE: The (ollowing
] Jetter was subenilled Lo Lhis news-
3 peper Moaday la respomse Lo an
A

prind it a3 | have wrillen iL
Back in 1980 Mr. Gordon Coles,
QC. as Depuly and | as Allorney

CAlas Story article in Satarday’'s To- Geoeral went before Lhe media and
“romts Siar. explained lully how we had reached
[© 1 have just resd o full page ar- the conclusion that mo charges were

“Flicke in the Toroato Deily Star edi warranted against Mr. Thornhill
Uon of Satwrday, April 9, 1988 as- The case simply put was that
f-cribed to one Alsa Story. be had become indebled to several
It parperts te review the banks im this provioce. He didnt

have the money Lo pay these debls
i full and employed a very reput-
able accountant bere in lalfax to
negollate a setllement.
Soggestions then began (o be
made Lhal because be was 8 minis-
ter of the Crowm this seitlement
process somehow violated Section
110{1)c) of the Criminal Code. The

sad | therefore feel that [ should
have the right (o reply, asd the pab-
lic the opportunily te read it [ am
therefore enlisting the xmsistance of
your mewipaper for thal purpose
Accordingly. | have writtes Lhe fol-
lowing and woeuld only ask that you

()

81.02,25.

The Nonowrable Marey ¥, Now, Q.C.
Atteraey General

Proviacial Building

P.0. Box 7

KALIFAX, Neva Scetia

Dear Rr. Mow:

This Tetter s te zom owr recant comversation
concerning the Thorahi11/Tavestigation and 1 provided
in accord with the coalractual relationship exfsting
between your office and the Force.

In view of the controversial maturs of this case, and
the bigh profile that 1t has assweed, 1 took steps te
easture that 1t was very carefully reviewed within the
Force at both the Divisfonal and "MQ® level.

Perhaps 1 showld Just say that we of cowrse asccept the
fact that amy legal advice required during the course

of a crimimal favestigation that we conduct s a reswlt
of owr contractval relationship with the Provimce must
come from Law Officers of the Crowa withim your office.

Ve 2lse maintain as & matter of primciple that pelice
officers have the right te Tay charges, independent -
of any legal advice received, 1f they are convinced
that there are reasonable grownds te do 3o and provided
of cowrse that & Justice well accept the charges.

Therefore whem the Deputy Atterney Cemaral advised on
the 79th of October 1980 that the circumstances and
“vidence fn this case were such that fa M3 Judgement
charges were mot warranted, and having ia mind the
principles stated in the twe preceding paragraphs, 1|
fastrected that the file be carefully reviewed within
the Ferce.

RCMP investigated ihese allega-
tions a3 they properly should. Like
wise the Chiel Superintendent of
Banks in Ottawa investigated. Bolh
reported they found no wrong doing
on the part of Mr. Thornhill or the
banks.

Despile these lindings which [
reporied (o the legislatore, the Op-
postion requested Lhat [ make a fur-
ther i igation and | obliged and
asked the RCMP Lo re-examine the
matler which they did This lime
they came back wilh the suggestion
that Thornhill, in making settle
menl of his debls, may have com-
milted a breach of Section 110
With that | discussed the matler
with my deputy. Mr. Coles, a very

able and honourable lawyer ap-
pownted in 1971 to thal posilion by
the former premier, Lhe llonowrable
Gerald Regan. and asked him (o re-
view Lhe whole matler. Because he
was a permanent civil servant and
not a colleague of Mr. Thornhill, as
I was, I instructed him (hat he was
te make a lotally objective finding,
leaving aside any comsideration of
his relationship o me as deputy,
and give me his completely impar-
tal opinion and recommendation as
to whelher or mol a charge or
charges should be laid against Mr.
Thornhill and | would act on his
recommendalion

He and Ihe other semior legal
stall dud as | ashed and lLater came

SRR
2 G e ClaM »
N Rt S .*dwmwmw,r
TN Rt T d..l..m., 5

2 This review was conducted by the Deput

. ERo, .l Canadian Mounted Police

.« Commisslionar far
Criminal Operatfons, Mr, J.R.R. Quintal, oy senfor staff

officer for Criminal Operations at “"NQ®. ‘He convemed a
=meeting st "HQ® Ottawa om the 5th of November 1980 and
was assisted 1n A3 review by senfor and well experienced
of ffcers on "HQ™ staff, as wall as the Comaanding Officer,

Divistonal C.1.9. Offfcer and favestigators from °N°®
Divisfon,

At the completion of his review he come to the same
conclusion as had the Deputy Attormey Gemeral, that being
that the clircumstances of the case as reflected in the
file, combined with evidence fa the hands of the
fnvestigators, did mot warrast the Taylng of a charge nor
the continvation of fmvestigation.

Fellowing Mis review the Deputy Commisstoner briefed me

on his conclusfons, and although I did not parsenally
review the file or st with the review tesm, [ fully
support the decisfon reachad by the Deputy Comalssioner

on the facts as he related them, What 15 important of
course fs that this 13 a judgement reached entirely

within the Force and without sutsfde influence or direction.
Had we come to o different conclusion we would have sought
further discussion with the Deputy Attormey Gemeral
following which, 1f differences had not been reconciled

it might have besn -nn.--wﬁ te present an Information and
Complaint te a Justice, well knowing that any subsequent
decision s to whather or mel prosccution proceed was &
matter entirely for your conslderation. MHowevar, i vigw

of our sssesiment and conclusions meither step was
Recessary.

1 trust thet the foregoing adequately describes our handling
of this matter.

Tours truly,

AL

R.H, Slasonds
Comaissioner

1200 Alts Yista Drive
Ottawa, Ontarfie
K1A Or2

- Chief Judge How responds to Story article

back to advise Lhal in Lhewr view no
criminal wrong doing was any-

where Lo be found on Lhe part of
Mr. Thormhill or the banks and
Iberefore the essential element of
mens rea or guilly mind mecessary
lo support a criminal charge
againsi anyone wander Lhe Criminal
Code was not present and’ Lhus no
charge was warranied. Both Mr.
Coles and | explained this at a news
conlerence we asked for, and [ ex-
plaimed it in the Legisiat as well.
I felt that under the circumalances
i was mpol appropriate for me Lo
muke Lhe devision whether or nol Lo
prosecutle and | took the mext and
most objective and 1a my view the
most honnurable way (o determine
the matler. Moreover, | never dis-
cussed the matter with Mr.
Thornhill. the premier or the cabi-
net because such decisions are, in
the Dritish tradilion. the perroga-
live of Lhe Attorney General alone.
The premier aod Mr. Thornhull re-
specied my posilion and Lhe Lradi-
tion behind L

Somclime laler, and quile Lo
my surprise, and | may add —
pleasant surprise — | was advised
by the head of the RCMP in Ot-
tawa, Commussioner Robert Sim-
monds, Lthal in view of Lhe division
of opinion among those in the
RCMP who had been involved, as Lo
whetber a charge or charges were
warranted, thal be had ordered a
complete review of the facts and
law by his senior stall, of the
Thornhill case. This resulled in Lhe
conclusion that mno charges were
warranied. | asked him if he would
consider putling Lhis 1 wriling and
without hesilation, be said he would
and eventually 1 received from him
the allached letter. 1 would only
ask that you print it in photo-siatl
form in ils entirety, along with this
response.

In the lace of all this, Mr. Slory
and apparently olhers for reasons
known oaly lo lhemselves, seem
deiermined (o resurrect Lhe matler
and implicitly to saggest something
improper and dishonowrable in my
romuct and that of Mr. Cole. If you
will please print this a3 | have writ-
lenm it | am contenl Lo let Lhe public
be Lhe judpe.

Thanking you
Yoers mncerely
Harry W. How

_—-- - - - -



SUBJECT:  POLICY STATEIMENT -
NEGOTIATIONS WITH DEFENCE COUNSEL
/ CONCERNING FLEA AND SENTENCE

4 1177
Periodically, a Prosecuting Officer may be approache& by Defence Counsel
who offers to plead his or her client guilty either: j
(a)  1in return for the Crown reducing the charge
to a less serious, included offence, or
(b)  in return for a specific recommendation by
the Crown to the sentencing Judgzs as the
quantum of sentence, or _
(c) in return for the Crowr withdrawing another
charge
With respect to situation (a) above, the decision as to whether to enter into
the arrangement proposed must be one for the Prosecuting Officer in the first
instance, except where the offence charged is fiﬁstfpr second dégree murder. He
or she must be satisfied that a plea to a reduced charge will ﬁot bring the
administration of justice into disrepute. In feaching such a conclusion, the
Prosecuting Officer maf wish to consult with the Assistant Director or Director
(Criminal). Where the charge is murder, it will be necessary to seek the approval
of the Department where Defence Counsel offers to enter a pleﬁ of guilty to the

included offence of manslaughter.

Any arrangement proposed which goes beyond the Crown agreeing to reduce the
charge to a less serious, included offence, must be approved by the Assistant
Director or Director (Criminal). This would encompass situations where in return
for a guilty plea, the Crown is asked to make a specific recommendation as to the
quantum of sentence or where the Crown is asked to withdraw one or more of
multiple charges in return for an accused entering a plea of guiIty to another of

the charges laid.

ud €
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Attorney General PO Box 7 _
Province of Nova Scotia 255"5’"1_5““ Scotia
902 424-4044
902 424-4020

File Number  93.87-0003-06

October 2, 1987

The Honourable Edmund L. Morris
Minister of Social Services
Halifax, Nova Scotia

Dear Mr. Morris:
Re: Federal Department of Justice Study

Attached is a copy of 2 memorandum dated October 1, 1987 from R.
Gerald Conrad to me. | am inclined to agree with the recommendation
of our officials and, subject to your concurrence, | will advise Mr. Conrad
to take the action which has been recommended.

May | please hear from you.

Yours very truly,

Terence R.B. Donahoe, Q.C.

attachment
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Assistant Prosecuting Officers are advised that they must seek the approval
of the Prosecuting Officer for the County prior to concluding any negotiations

with the Defence concerning plea and sentence.

The Appeal Division of the Supreme Court of Nova Scotia has stated that “plea
bargaining" is not to be regarded with favour. However, the Court has recognized
that the Crown and Defence Counsel will enter into such arrangements from time
to time. It must always be kept in mind that any agreement by the Crown on a
specific recommendation to be put forward as to the quantum of sentence must accord
with the principles of sentencing and the range of sentences ennunciated by the

appellate courts for the particular type of crime involved.
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Department of sz duis s Il )
Auorney General U\\/Ak‘)“ I 1) ))“(' ’)I] K¢ )IHJHI 1M

Crown Proseculor’s Office November 22, 1985

To All Prosecutors fron David W. Thomas, Q.C.

Re: Plea Bargaining

Your attention is directed to Section 7.21
of Volume 1, Advice to Prosecuting Officers, wherein
you will note that Assistant Prosecuting Officers

"are advised that they must seek DEPT. OF THt
the approval of the Prosecuting
Officer for the County prior to Ly v 1989

concluding any negotiations with
the defence concerning plea and
sentence." ; ATTGHNMEY GLMER--

Section 7.20 sets out the procedure to be
followed Ly the Prosecuting Officer.

As a general statement of policy to be
followed by Assistant Prosecuting Officers in Halifax
County, it is my view that the position you should
take is that you will recommend either local or federal
time and that you should not be specific as to the length
of time.

You may go a step further and indicate that
you feel lengthy local or federal time would be appropriate,
or alternatively, a short local term or a term in a
federal institution. Sentence is a matter for the court.
If either party feels aggrieved by the sentence the appropriate
remedy is to appeal same.

DIWCT.

DWT/rrp

///Ec: Martin Herschorn
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R. v, MORRISON

Nova Scotia Supreme Court, Appeal Division
Crown Side N
MacKeigan, C.J.N,S., Cooper and Macdonald, JJ.A.
October 6, 1975.

CRIMINAL LAW - TOPIC 5859

SENTENCE - CHARGE OF FRAUD - 30 YEAR OLD MALE LAWYER -
THE NOVA SCOTIA COURT OF APPEAL IMPOSED A SENTENCE OF IM-
PRISONMENT OF 2 YEARS,

BARRISTERS AND SOLICITORS - TOPIC 2041

DUTY TO THE PUBLIC - SPECIAL DUTY OF A LAWYER TO THE
PUBLIC - A LAWYER WAS CHARGED AND CONVICTED OF FRAUD -
IN CONSIDERING SENTENCE THE NOVA SCOTIA COURT OF APPEAL
STATED THAT A LAWYER HAS A SPECIAL DUTY TO AVOID CRIMIN-
AL CONDUCT - SEE PARAGRAPH 13,

CASES JUDICIALLY NOTICED:
R. v. Grady, 5 N.S,R. (2d) 264, folld, [para. 18].
Osachie v. The Queen, 6 N.S,R, (2d) 628, folld,
(para. 18].
R. v. Cormier, 9 N.S,R, (2d) 687, folld. [para. 18],

GRAHAM W, STEWART, for the appellant,
WILLIAM E, KELLEHER, for the respondent,

This appeal was heard by the bvvmmw Division on Septem-
ber 17, 1975, Judgment was delivered by the Appeal Di-
vision on October 6, 1975,

The judgment of the Appeal Division was delivered by
MacKEIGAN, C.J.N.S,

MacKEIGAN, C.J.N.S,: We should grant the Crown
leave to appeal from the suspension of passing of sentence
for two years on three charges of fraud to which on May
28, 1975, the respondent pleaded guilty before His Honour
Judge R,F, McLellan in the County Court Judge's Criminal
Court for District Number One,

The respondent is thirty years of age, a graduate
of Dalhousie University in Arts and Law, and a member of
the Bar of this province since March 1972, Married in
1967, he and his wife had been separated for several months
prior to his trial, They have three young children,

After admission to the Bar, he practiced law for a
year at Halifax as an employee of F.H, FitzGerald, Q.C.

—
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He then established his own practice, largely in the field
of mortgages and real estate, at Bedford, Nova Scotia, By
December 1973, he had opened a branch office at Dartmouth,
in the same building as important new clients, Associates
Financial Services Limited, and its mortgage affiliate,
Associlates Realty Credit Limited, clients whom he lost in
April 1974,

»

He was then in serious financial difficulties result-
ing from extravagance and overspending by him and especial-
ly by his wife, He had a large, luxurious home, fully
mortgaged for about $120,000,00, and expensively furnished,
He had two cars, nothing but the best for his wife and
children, and many large bills outstanding.

On about May 18, 1974, a thief broke into ths Dart-
mouth office of Associates and stole at least two aumbered
cheque blanks of Associates Financial Services Limited,
blanks for use with its account at a Bank of Montreal
branch at Toronto. The theft was soon discovered by As-
sociates who placed a stop payment on the two cheques with
the Toronto bank. The cheque blanks found their way into
Morrison's possession.

Morrison was, of course, familiar with the signatures
and procedures of his former client, including the fact
that as appeared from argument, any cheque debit would nor-
mally be cleared to the Indiana head office and might well
not be questioned for some time. Not knowing of the stop
payment he, on May 27, 1974, deposited to his account in
Halifax one of the stolen cheques, having made it payable
for $18,739,43 to himself in trust for one Legace, a former
mortgage client, and having forged the signature of the
signing officer. The Toronto bank failed to put the stop
order into effect, and the fraud was not discovered until
some months later., None of this sum has been repaid, the
full loss being borne by the bank, because of its failure
to stop payment,

Meanwhile, two months later, Morrison forged and de-
posited the second stolen cheque to his account at Bedford,
again for $18,739.,43, made payable this time to one J,J,
Keough, whose endorsement was also forged, A few days lat-
er on July 8, 1974, his bank was informed by Toronto that
the cheque was forged, and promptly retrileved the money
from his accounts, so that no loss was suffered,

Disclosure of these two crimes did not deter him
from other crime, but apparently made his actlons more
frantic., Over three months later, on October 28, 1974, the

1
i
]
2
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respendent opened an account in a
vi-=ell"”, at a Canadian Imperial

i~ Haiifax, depositing

$10.00, He

chegue against the Martell account
desosited it to his own account at

Halifax. The Commerce

for $14,000.00 would be deposited
cheque, apparently another false

account at Rockingham,
rot credited.) By the

false name, '"Richard
Bank of Commerce branch

~

then drew a false
for $11,000,00 and
Canada Trust Company,

did not honour the cheque despite
a ohone call from "Martell", promising that another cheque

Nova Scotia
time Canada

to cover it., (Such a =
cheque drawn on a dummy

, was deposited, but
Trust discovered the

fraud, Morrison had drawn about $2,000,00 from the $11,-
000.00 "deposit", of which he later paid back about $1,-
350.00, leaving a net loss, not ye

§700.00.

Informations were sSwo
t~e respondent, alleging six

trary to s. 338 of the

ty pleas under s. 338.

t repaid, of about
\

rn December 10, 1974, against
offences, three of fraud con-

Criminal Code, and three of utter-
ing forged documents contrary to s. 326, in respect of
each of the three above-described transactions, Charges
under s. 326 were not proceeded with, following his guil-

After the charges were laid,
forced to turn his practice over to a trustee for the Bar
Society, It is expected that the
will result in his disbarment in due course, He separat-
ed from his wife, who has their children, and is driving
a taxl in Halifax to earn a living

the respondent was

criminal convictions

The offences committed are mosSt reprehensible. They

cannot in my opinion b

e equated to

an accountant or lawyer who, under

habits or .an extravaga

accounts in the vain hop

more serious offences.
trust by professional

nt wife, mig

Reprehensi
persons, whi

breaches of trust by
pressure of expensive
ht "borrow" from trust

e of repayment. They are much

ble as are breaches of
ch have been usually re-

cognized by the courts as necessitating substantial terms

' of fences involved the

not isolated or semi-v
carefully planned crim

added featur

e of forgery. They are

oluntary impulsive "borrowings', but

es of a soph

isticated sort, commit-

ted over a period of nearly six months, He planned frauds

totalling nearly $50,0
$19,000.00 which has n

His counsel befo
not committed qua lawy
ed, and no client was

00,00, of wh
ot been paid

re us urged
er, that no
defrauded.

ich he has retained over
back.

that his offences were
breach of trust occurr-
Respectfully I cannot
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agree. In his attempts to defraud Assoclates, he used in-
formation obtained while he was acting for them, and it
was not his fault that they did not lose any money.

Furthermore, even had no client been involved, we
must especially denounce crimes of fraud and forgery com-
mitted by a“member of the Bar, a sworn officer of this
Court. Such a man has a special duty. We must deal with
a breach of that duty. temperately, mercifully and without
undue righteousness, but at the same time firmly and to
warn others.

The learned trial judge was impressed, and properly
so, by extensive evidence prior to sentencing, by the re-
spondent's secretary, by his mother, by his former employ-
er, Mr. FitzGerald, by himself, and especially, by Dr.
Leslie Kovacs, a psychiatrist who treated him for about
six months, after the charges had been laid against him.
The theme forcefully illustrated by all witnesses was that
Morrison had been induced, persuaded and, indeed, forced
by the constant pleas, importunities, unreasonable demands
and naggings of his wife, reinforced by feigned illnesses,

to try to support her in a fantastically extravagant way
of life,

Dr. Kovacs testified that he was convinced, although
he saw the respondent only after the events, that the re-
spondent was seriously upset by the pressures of his wife,
and, as I understand the doctor's evidence, was almost an
automaton in trying, by illegal means, to find a solution
for their financial problems, He believed that the re-
spondent had had his personality restored in strength by
his psychiatric treatment and that he thought no chance
existed of the respondent committing similar offences again.

In result, as Judge McLellan fully appreciated, the
vmwnernnHmﬂ,m evidence did not excuse Mitchell Morrison
but did make it clear that no sentence of 1incarceration
was required either to rehabilitate him or deter him from
committing such offences again. This I entirely accept.

The learned trial judge also interpreted Dr. Kovacs
as saying that ''the effect of confinement could destroy
his personality, He could not now take the stress of in-
carceration.," 1 cannot help but feel that he misinterpre-
ted the doctor's evidence, I interpret Dr, Xovacs as mere-
ly saying that the growth in personality maturity achleved
during his treatment might or could be lost if Morrison
were imprisoned. He gald, as to any period of imprison-
ment :
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No, it could destroy his personality. It could de-
stroy what he achieved through difficult expaerien-
ces. This personality growth tha:z I ze’k abcut, I
believe it has occurred,., But I thinx iz wzu1d not
only be jeopardized but it could be destroyel be-
cause when I mentioned that he's adble to texe stres-
ses, now he's going to take stresses but rot the
stress of being incarcerated. ¥

A
e
1

The learned trial judge in a thorough and conscien-
tious judgment reviewed the evidence he had heard and the
principles respecting sentencing, quoting from The Queen
v. Grady, 5 N,S.R. (2d) 264, Osachie v. The Queen, 6 N,
S.R. (24} 628, and The Queen v, Cormier, 9 N,S.R. (2d)
687. He concluded, quite properly, that no imprisonment
was necessary to rehabilitate or deter Morrison himself.
He quoted with approval the following statement by Prof-
essor Alan Grant who was the rapporteur for Group D of
the persons who attended the National Conference on the
Disposition of Offenders in Canada. The report is entitl-
ed "Report of the Proceedings of the National Conference
on the Disposition of Offenders in Canada", held at the
Centre of Criminology, University of Toronto, on May 14
to 17:

...the public.,.must decide the tolerance level of
antisocial conduct at which it is proper for the
criminal sanction to be imposed, and the humanitar-
ian level beyond which steps to check such behavior
must cease.:

He then concluded that the respondent, having lost his
family and his profession, had "suffered enough...,or al-
most enough. I do not consider that society has the right
nor indeed the need to exact further retribution from this
accused.'" He then directed suspension of sentence for

two years,

Wwith much reluctance I must disagree with the learn-
ed judge. I am respectfully of the opinion he overlooked
the inescapable duty of imposing, for a calculated crime
of this sort, a sentence which would reflect a substantial
element of deterrence to others, This is so different
from the manslaughter in Cormier accidentally or impulsive-
ly committed by a poor mother of seven children in the
middle of a drunken row with an abusive husband, I can
find here no element of deterrence to others and no clear
warning to others tempted to offend, Here material im-
prisonment cannot be avoided because, to use the words of
the Ouimet Report, - no other disposition is appropriate,

Ampr——

20
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I regretfully conclude that the appeal should be al-
lowed and the respondent sentenced to two years' imprison-
ment in a federal institution on each charge, to run con-
currently. I trust that he will serve this time at Spring-
hill where he may be able to obtain a continuation of psy-
chiatric treatment if required.

Appeal allowed.
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IN THE SUPREME COURT OF NOVA SCOTIA
APPEAL DIVISION

MacKeigan, C.J.N.S.; Jones and Pace, JJ.A.

BETWEEN:

David G. Giovanetti
for the appellant

YER MAJESTY THE QUEEN

)
)
Lppellant )
) Luke Wintermans
- and - ) for the respondent
)
) Appeal Heard:
DENNIS ERNEST PARRY ) September 12, 1979
)
Respondent ) Judgment Delivered:
)

Septcmber 12, 1979

THE COUKT (Per oral judgment of lMacKeigan, C.J.N.S.):
Appeal allowed end sentcunces for frazud and theft
increacsed to total of tuclve nonths.



The reasons for judgment were delivered orally by:

MACKEIGAN, C.J.N.S.:

This is an application by the Crown for leave to appeal
from sentences imposed by His Honour Judge P.J. O Hearn, of the
gounty Court Judge's Criminal Cdurt of District Number One, on
charges of fraud and theft. He suspended sentence and placed
the accuccd on probation for a period of two years and oxcered

partial rcstitution of the money involved.
Leave to eppcal is herchy grented.

he firsi charge, under s.338(1) (a) of the Criminal Code
wras for defriuding Halifax Czblevision Limited by appropriating
{o his own use a cheque for $270.00 in June 1975, and one for

$872.00 in Februexy 1916 .

The second ch&rge, under s.294(a) of the Criminal Code, was
for theft from Rent-A-Bay Limited of t: o chcgques totalling
$1,894.95, an offence’ cormitted on Voveuber 10, 1976. Rent-A-

nay Limited was a company which Mr. Parry had organized end

helped to finance.

he third charge, under 5.338(1) (a) of the QEiHéﬁil_EQEQL
wvas for defrauding the Federal Business pevelopumcnt Bank of
$34,000.00. This was done by falsely reprcsenting the @ .ount of
woney invested by him in Rent-A-Ray Limited, for wﬁich he had

applicd to the Bank for a loan. The Bank granted a loan of



2.
$34,000.00 and, I understand, advanced $33,500,00. The essential
false representation was achieved by placing in the account
$5,200.00, which had been stolen by him from other companies.
He thus induced his chartered accountant to certify a pro forma
statement for Rent-A-Bay Limited showing assets which did not
exist and which helped induce the Bank to make the loan. After
the loan was made Mr. Parry redeposited the $5,200.00 with the
cor hanies from which he had stolen it. Subseguently, Rent-A-Bay
Iimited went bankrupt and the Federal Business Developnent Bank
suffered a loss of $33,500.00, on which through the bankruptcy

it may pocsibly recover 30 cents on the dollar.

Mr. Parry is now thirty-four years of age. He has no criminal
vecord., He is divorced and under obligation to pay $101.00 a
onth for the support of his wife and two young daughters. e is
obviously an able accountent, very skilled at his occupation and
hes had no difficulty in obtaining employusent, including employ-
ment which he now holds. He has clearly exhibited remorse and has
undertal .n to try to make restitution to thooe deTravded, includ-

ing the Bank.

the learned trial judge in passing centence, following a plea
of guilty to the three charges, cuphasized that ordinarily
offénces of this sort would call for cubstantial terms of imprison-
ment. He stated, however; that he considered there were excep-
+ional circuustaznces in this case which warxrented imposing the

sentc 1ce which he did.
b



3.
We are unable to see that there is anything exceptional

about these offences. They were typical so-called whitecollar
thefts or frauds. They occurred over a considerable period of
time--nearly a year and a half. They obviously involved pre-
neditation. The fraud of the bank in particular required con-
siderable planning and sqphisﬁicmﬁd arrangements. There S no
doubt of this man's otherwice good charecter and of his repent-
ance. This is not a case tvhere s:hebilitation or personal

deterrcnce is concerjcd.

{le must eiphasize, however, that those committing this type
of offence and others tcrpted to act sjimilarly must be chown
that they cannot escape sevQre punishment werely by repentéence
or rcstitution end that Q cuhstential mecsure of public detcr-

vence has to bhe LC;inibﬁa;cd.

Having regerd to all the circwastances, the cppcal from
centenpe is hereby allowed and the sentences varicd to be as
follous: (1) threce wonths! impriconment on the charge uvndey
s.338(1) (a) of dcféauding Halifax Cahloevision; (2) three months
consecutive to the first sentence on the chérge under s.2%4(a)
of trheft from Rent-A-Bay Limited; and (3) six wonths conseécu-
+ive to the tio previous eontcnoes on the charge undey s.338(1)
(a) of defrruding the Federal Businecs Developnont Bank. The
pmubation order chould be varied ond a ncey one iscucd, placing
17, Parry on probation for a pericd of one yecar follewing his

relecce, with the same conditions as imposed by Judge O Hcarn,

e
concurred in: Co Jo Ha Ss
Jor J.A,
ones, A%

pace, J.A. i/
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IN THE SUPREME COURT OF NOVA SCOTIA

APPEAL DIVISION

clarke, C.J.N.S., Hart and Macdonald, JJ.A.

BETWEEN : David F, Walker, Q.C.,

for the appellant

TERRANCE POWER,
Robert E. Lutes,
Brian Newton and
Adrian Reid,

for the respondent

Appellant
- and -

Appeal Heard:
March 11, 1986

HER MAJESTY THE QUEEN,

Respondent
Judgnent Delivered:
March 11, 1986
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1133 COURT: Appeals against both conviction and
sentence dicsmissed per oral reasons
for judgment of Clarke, C.J.N.S.,
Hart and Mccdonald, JJ.A. concurring.
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The reasons for judgment of the Court were delivered orally

by:

CLARKE, C.J.N.S.:

The appellanc secks lcave to appeal and, if granted, to
appeal from his conviction on July 12, 1985, at Halifax. The
monourable Judge O Hcrrn of the County Court found the appellant
guilty of elcven counts of fraud and theft. ilicce charges arose
from and are related to activities with which the now bankrupt
investment firm of Atlantic Securities Ifimited was involved.
The appellant Mr. Power was the guiding and directing force be-

hind this company.

rengthy and detailed written briefs znd arguments have bcen
submitied to the Court as well as the several volurn. s of
transcript of evidcnce recorded at the trial, together with the
many exhibits. We have had the opportunity to examine and study
all this together with ithe supplementary oral argrmrnt of coun-

sel.

We heve concluded that no reviewable error of law exists.
It is our unanimous opinion that there is ample evidence to sup-
port the conviction entered by the lecarned trial judge on each

of the elcven counts.

We grant leave to appeal from the conviction but the =pp

is dismissed.

by

\\
N
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The Crown sceks lecave to appeal from the sentence imposed
by the learned trial judgelon September 6, 1985. Mr. Power
seeks a reduction of the total sentence. On these eleven
charges Judge 0O !earn sentenced the respondent to a total term
of imprisonment of four years in a federal institution. If
leave be granted, the Crown submits this sentence should be in-
cre:sed. Mr. Power sceks to have it reduced. Once again, we
have had the benefit of lengthy written submissions and the sub-

sequent oral argument of both counsel.

So far as we are aware, four years is the longest sentence
imposed in this province against a professional person for
of fences of this nature. The respondcnt was a lawyer'of some
years' standing. He has been disbarred by the Nova Scotia Bar-
risters' Society. He has declared bankruptcy. He and his fam-
ily have undoubtedly cuffered much agony and anxiety as a result |
of the ill-conceived ventures which led the respondent to this
unhappy fate. As a lawyer, he was in a position where much

trust and confidence were placed in him by those with whcm he

had dcalings.

Judge O Hearn took these matters into account. He stressed

~he obvious need for general deterrence. The public must be

protectcd.

Afier a careful review and study of _the reasons for

centence, we are persuaded that the learned trial judge enunci-




ated the preper and appropriate principles. We are satisf: i he
ccmmitted no error and that the sentence is fit and should not

be disturbed.

While we grant leave to appeal from the sentence, we

dismiss both appecals.

C. JO N. S.
Concurred in: bq/T/
Hart, J.A. (“

Macdonald, J.A. / ‘
& )_ ‘
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“on Giffin- Press Conference - 1984- election
Ladies I have a statement to make.....e...

This week A.M Cameron the leader of the opposition has made
certain charges. First he accused the department of the
Attorney General of stopping an RCMP investigation. Second
he accused the department of failing to act. These charges
ire false,

They have impuned my integrity and worst of all they have

rs--ctlled into question the administration of justice of Nova ..

Scotia. As Attorney General, I regret ver> much that these
charges have been made. Obviously I am concerned that my
own integrity has been attacked and I am outraged that a
member of the legislature should make charges which may
leave Nova scotians in doubt about the proper
administration of justice in our province.

Let me assure all Nova Scotians that the Attorney General's
Department and the RCMP have been operating in a manner in
which their integrity is beyond question.

No investigation has been thwarted.

A brief outline of the background of this matter is in
order.

In the fall of 1983, in the routine discharge of his
duties, the Auditor General reviewed the expence claims of
all 52 MLAs . I understand that in the course of this
review, he spoke informally on two occasions with the RCMP,
and that these discussioins concerned the expense claims of
only one MLA, because no one from the Attorney General's
department was present at those two meetings, I am unable
to comment further on what took place at them.

Subsequently a meeting took place among the Auditor
General, the Deputy Auditor General and senior officlals of
the Auditor General's department. Senlor officers of the
RCMP joined the meeting at its conclusion, and were advised
that the matter was to be refererd to the Attorney
General's department for their consideration and advice.

The RCMP were in agreeement with this decision. This E
procedure was in accordance with established practice..
Senior officials of the Attorney General's department did
thoroughly review the matter. AT their request, the-
Speaker, and the deputy auditor general met with the MLA
involved and reviewed the matter with him.

= —

This review included explanations and further documentation [!
from the MLA about certain expenses. These explanations .
had not prev1ously been sought by the Auditor General. :
Based on this review, these senior officials concluded,

that there were no facts, no basis, on which_an

investigation either could or should be commenced. I
accordingly wrote a letter on April 18, 1984 to the Speaker

and the Auditor General to this effect.
{ | A e

The RCMP never at any time, started an investigation'as : Jer
they .are free to do at any time, and never _at any _time. i w |
requested that one be started. Further at no time since my
ietters has the Auditor General or the RCMP questioned me
or any of my officials on any aspect of my letter.

My letter therefore marked the end of the matter as far as

the department of theAttorney General was concerned. There| f%ffﬁ'l 35
were simply no facts to suggest wrong=doing and I told the E? g LE B ﬂﬁ\#
speaker and the Auditor General so in writing. u !,3% éj' |
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Mr. Cameron is therefore totally wrong in saying that the
Attorney General's department stopped any investigation.
There was no political interference whatsoever in the
administration of justice.

in a later press statement, Mr. Cameron shifted his ground,
~hanged his allegation that the Attorney General's
separtment stopped an investigation and instead, alleged
‘"that the department had sat on the issue for a year without
doing anything. Again, he is totally wrong.

Normally , I as Attorney General, would simply refuse to
discuss in public any aspect of a matter such as this,
especially where the result was to exdonerate the
individual concerned. But because the administration of
justice in this province has been brought into disrepute by
Mr., Cameron, I feel I must do so.

Contrary to additional charges made this week, concerning
other MLAs , at no time did either theRCMP or the Auditor
General raise with my department any question concerning
any MLA other than the one MLA referred to in my letter of
Aprl 18, I feel I have given Mr. Cameron every reasonable
opportunity to withdraw his allegations. 1I deeply regret
that he has not done so. With the concurrence of the MLA
referred to, in my letter I am now making public copies of
that letter.

I'11 ask that they be distributed to you now, and I'm
prepared to answer any questions.

Will you take civil action against Mr. Cameron?

"The Status of that is that I have instructed my sollicitor
to write to Mr. Cameron demanding a withdrawl of his
allegations and apology. That letter has been delivered to
Mr. Cameron. If he does not withdraw, if he does not
apologize I will have no alternative but to commence a
legal action against him."

Have you given him a time by which he should make the
apology or withdraw the allegations?

"We did not set a date, however it's obvious that since
there is a provincial election on Tuesday, and since this
is an attack on my integrity and my reputation that any
withdrawl and apology to be meaningful would have to be
made before then."

Mr. Giffin on page two of your statement,the bottom line
you say this procedure was in accordance with established
practice. It seems that everytime there is a question
involving a politician, established practice seems to be
that the Attorney General's department takes over the
investigation. 1In a case like this if the expense
statements of perhaps a civil servant were guestioned,
would that matter go to the Attorney General. I don't
think it would the RCMP would look into that themselves
without consultation with the Attorney General's department

B S
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Let me explain the point to you in this way. It is the
department of the Attorney General that deals with the RCMP
in Nova Scotia on a wide range of matters as has been '
mentioned my senior officials meet with them, at least once

a week. So if a department required advice in a situation
like this, the normal practice is for that department to

seek advice from the Attorney General's department, because
after all the Attorney General is the lawyer - the
sollicitor- for the Government of Nova Scotia, and the
.Getermination of whether or not a matter ought to be

referred to the RCMP for investigation - for further e
investigation - is a matter that rests with the department
of the Attorney General. il

But that doesn't always happen in other cases.

‘-\__\‘\
If you can cite examples of that...I can only say to you
this, that if there are situations in which for example a \
civil servant has misappropriated funds, the normal \
practice would be that the department in question would
consult the attorney general's department before contacting !
any police force about it. Now that may be done at a lowver |
level, it isn't always _done_at_theministerial-level, but
in a case like that there would be consultation with the
sollicitor from the department of the Attorney General who
is assigned to that department, and the advice from that
sollicitor would then govern whether or not the matter went
on for a police investigation. That's the normal practice.

PN

Would you tell me whether or not Gordon Coles was one of
the senior officials that approved the ...

_Yes. Gordon Coles, who is the deputy Attorney General and
Gordon Gale who 1s the director on criminal matters in the
department.

Mr. Giffin getting back to what you say is the established
practice- a former member of the crown prosecutor's office,
Kevin Burke has expressed dismay that appears to happen,
that the Attorney General's department has the authority to
approve or disapprove commencement of such investigations,
and that they first go to your office for approval before
anything else is done.

Well I think ygp_navg_;g_ﬁngegptang_that_l'm the chief law 4
enforcemen hqfficgruqf the province. IE_EE_E!
responsiblity to make thoseé detérminations.

. f e —————

You're also a member of the same political party, and there
is a certain affiliation that occurs there. It's hardly an
arms-length relationship. Why when you're so close.. of a
relationship don't you feel there is a possibility of the
appearance of conflict?

I think there are two replies to be made to that., One is
that I turned the matter over to my senior officials, who
are not elected people. They are not partisan politicians.
They are responsible, dedicated, honorable civil servants,
both with long careers in the public service of Nova
Scotia, and I have complete faith in their judgement, their
objectivity and their competence.

The second point is that, as Attorney General, in my
responsibility for the administration of justice for the
province of Nova Scotia, that responsibility is vested in
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me, in that office, independently of the cabinet room. My
responsibility as Attorney General in the administration of
justice in the province of Nova Scotia, is not subject to
any political direction whatsoever,

Mr. Giffin did you give the RCMP and the Auditor General
the information that Mr. MacLean apparently gave you to
justify the expense claims ..the other day were concerned

_about?

Well, you'll see from reading my letter to the Speaker that
ve went into this matter in some detail. And as I
indicated in my statement, ditor general, at
Lhe_HLAuigﬂaﬁggtign_xaEZinteinereq_gn_phqqe_maptggq_gng
vwhen that documentation was examined.

the request of my staff vas_present_with_the_ Speaker, _when

Why the time frame . It's nearly six months from the time
the Attorney General's department was first made aware of
this problem, unti1l your letter was written in April. Why
a six month thing for what reading your letter seems to be
a fairly simple explanation. It definitely appears to be

on the suface.

The short answer is this, that we were not simply gathering
information in the course of this review, although
information was gathered and documentation was examined.

It vas also necessary for my staff to examine in detail the
legislation and the reuglations, governing expense payments
to MLAs, and as you will see from the letter, we concluded
+ they concluded that the regulations were very
complicated, very difficult to understand and that there
were numerous uncertainties about the regulations, so this
took a considerable number of time for my people to examine
those regulations and to form their own opinions on the
significance of the various regulations. That was the
time-consuming aspect of the matter.

There were other names mentioned by the Auditor General, in
terms of his examination of MLA expenses. This letter
deals with one particular individual. Has similar
examination been placed on the other names that were put
forward to your department?

No. No. Because no other names were put forwvard to my
department. The only name that was referred to my
department was the name of the individual referred to in
that letter. The Auditor General at no time asked my
department to conduct a review with respect to any other
members of the House.

Is the Auditor General the only apolitical watchdog
involved in this. Is he satisifed that all ... has
questions have been answered.

All I can say to you on that is my letter went to the
Speaker and the Auditor General and that since then the
Auditor General has not raised any further questions about
the matter. The Auditor General has not quarrelled with
any of the contents of that letter.

ARe you saying that the RCMP have no investigation file on
this matter?

R L e . T L T TR
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That is corrrect.

Why did Mr. Maclean feel it was necessary to clip the
Shieling motel stationary and attach it to his statement?

Oh. I can't get into that kind of detail. All right? What
I am describing for you - I think It's important for you to
understand this - is the procedure that we followed in
“dealing with this matter, because the allegation that has
been made by Mr. Cameron is first that we stopped an RCMP
investigation. That allegation is totally untrue becuase
there was never an RCMP investigation in the first place,
and if there had been one I would not have stopped {t.

The second point I want to make about that is Mr. Cameron's
allegation that we sat on the file or the matter and did
nothing. That is totally untrue. My senior officials
reviewed this matter, they received information and
documentation and reviewed the regulations and the
legislation, and they came to the opinion - an opinion that
I share , because I signed the letter - that there was no
wrong doing and there was nothing here that required an
RCMP investigation.

Well If you signed the letter you must have tried to
satisfy yourself why Mr. MacLean felt it was necessary to
submit his expense claims under the Shieling Hotel.

You are misunderstanding the letter, totally. YOu'll have

to study it in order to understand what was in the letter.
This is a situation- Let me put it this way,..many of us as
individuals, are required in connection wvith our employment
and so forth to submit expense claims and I'm sure that

many of us in this room have had the experience, of having
submitted an expense claim, of then having the employer or
the accountant in the office question some item in the
expense claim and then it was incumbent upon you to explain
the item to the satisfaction of the company. Now, in this
case what we had was information in the hands of the !
auditor general which was not complete, because what the I
Auditor General had at the first stage of this matter had |
not involved any explanation of the MLA concerned. .
In other words, at that stage, Mr. MacLean had been given

no opportunity to explain these matters. It's always been

my understanding in a situation like that, that the logical
thing is to give the individual in question an opportunity

to explain what has happened. _When the matter came to my
desk _that was the first point that struck me was that we
were_deallng with a situation In vhich the auditor genera) |
did not_have all of the relevant information because the _
_auditor gemeral to that point_in_time had néver Interviewed
Mr. MacLean and had never posed to Mr. MacLean the.
questions on the Auditor General's mind..

When those questions were posed through_the Speaker and the
Deputy Auditor General during a relvew of this matter, Mr.
MacLean then provided satisfactory explanations on these _ /
matters, and _those explanations, as far as I'm_concerned
meant the end of the matter.” _

Did Mr. MacLean ever offer you any other proof than a
letter from his friend that he had paid for $3,000 here in
the city outside hotels..

Well he provided that as evidence that the monies had
indeed been paid, and that the receipt forms in question

e
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vere a record of monies paid. Now that was an explanation
that satisifed us and that was an explanation that the
Auditor General did not have, during his initial inquiries
into this matter.

Has that explanation satisified the Auditor General?

Yes, Yes sir.

Mr. Giffin on page four of the prepared statement, you say
that Mr. Cameron is totally wrong in saying that the
Attorney General's department stopped any investigation.
Would it be accurate to say that the Attorney General's
department stopped any investigation from starting? Would
that be an accurate statement?

The decision which we had to make in the attorney general's
department was whether or not this matter ought to be
referred to the RCMP for an investigation. When we
completed our review of the matter we were satisfied with
the explanations given and there was nothing that had to be
turned over to the RCMP. The allegation which Mr. Cameron
made was that I as Attorney General had intervened and
stopped an RCMP investigation in progress, that allegation
is totally untrue.

Mr. Giffin in the Auditor General' sReport tabled in the
House this year, he suggested..that there are a number of
voids, ambiguities and so on in the regulations that govern
expenses, and he said it was his understanding the matter
had been referred to the internal economy board for
updating and it was his understanding it would be dealt
with at that particular level. Can you update us on vwhat's
been happening in that particular review.

It's my understanding from the speaker that a reivew of
these matters is in progress in conjunction with the office
of the auditor general. There is consultation there on the
revision of those rules. I'm also told by the Speaker that
the report on that should be ready for the next sitting of
the house of assembly.

Mr. Giffin it seems to me that when this whole business
started there was in fact an auditor general, but as of
April 18 this year there was not an auditor general, wvas
there not. There wasn't one there.

There was an acting auditor general

The other question that I have is that it seems to have
cast sort of hints of scandale on at least five other
people, and I'm wondering if to dispel that the goverment
is willing to make public the auditor general';s report, of
the audit done on the MLAs.

Making public of anything like that done by the auditor
general is the responsibility of the auditor general. The
Government of Nova Scotia cannot instruct the auditor
general on that because the Auditor General is not a
crature of the Government of Nova Scotia, the Auditor
General is the servant of the House of Assembly. He is
independent of the government.

——
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Well Mr. Giffin would the acting auditor general have had
that same protection were he to have brought up any of this
during the time he was ..

T don't understand that . YOu're saying the same
protection.

Well you're saying the Auditor General's is above and
beyond...

Yes , well, when I say Auditor General, I include in that
acting auditor general. Sure.

Mr. Giffin there is an adage that justice must not only be
done, but must be seen to be done. 1In light of the reality
that you are the Conservative cabinet minister and that
judgement was made on another Conservative cabinet
minister, would justice not seen to be done best by having
an investigation now.

I can only repeat what I sald before which is that I
referred this matter to the senior non-elected officials in
my department for their review and advice.

Are you satisifed that justice appears to be done here?

Yes I am.

Are you confident, sir that the people of Nova Scotia will
conclude that?

I have complete confidence in the judgement of the people
of Nova Scotia and I have complete judgement in the people
of my own constituency.

You say in your statement, sir , that worst of all this
matter has called into question the administration of
justice in Nova Scotia, along with your own integrity and
that of some other people. There has created quite a
controversy in this province. A lot of people are talking
about it.

There are two things that I would say about it. First, Mr.
Cameron has made very serious allegations of criminal
misconduct, and yet as all of you know who attended his
press conference of Oct. 31, he has not produced one iota
of evidence to support those allegations. Secondly , Mr.
Cameron having made these very serious allegations of
criminal misconduct, on the part of myself and others has
not had the courage to say , as he should in accordance
with parliarmentary tradition that if he is wrong he will
resign his seat.

Sir, would you support a public inquiry into this matter to
clear the air.

No. There is no need for a public inquiry into this
matter. I have faith in the non-elected senior officials
of my department and with their dealing with this mattgr.
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One of the things that bothers me about this + and
unfortuantely you're not the attorney general who was in
office about four years. About four Years ago, there was a
similar situation about Mr. Thornhill's bank loan
vrite-off. First we were told there was no investigation.
Consequently to that the ATtorney General of the day and
senior RCMP officers began to say, yes, there had been an
inquiry. Now over a period of time we eventually learned
there had been an investigation. The thing that bothers me, ==
and unfortunately for you - is that I find you know how are
¥e supposed to merely accept what you say given that sort
of background. It makes us suspicious.

Let me put it this way, I would be more suspicious if
someone who makes totally unfounded allegations of criminal
misconduct and produces no evidence in support of those
allegations.

Mr. Giffin you're a Iawyer and you've dealt with policemen
most of your professional 1ife, how do you think a
policeman would have reacted to the type of material that
you found with regard to Mr. MaclLean's staionery

That's a purely speculative question. I can't answer that.

The documentation Mr. MacLean has put forward, are
statements from a hotel owned by a relative of his and
statements of a friend of his in Halifax. Did you check
either of those sources to see if the exchange of monies he
said took place actually did?

As I indicated and there is material in the file on this
that we have it in writing that monies were paid. Yes.

Mr. Giffin, Mr. Cameron also accused you of political
interference in the Donald Marshall case, what is your
comment on that?

Sure. I have no qualms about defending here, or at any
other time, my handling of the Donald Marshall case. The
great concern that I have had throughout is that we still
have serious criminal proceedings in the courts involving
Mr. Roy Ebsary. I have had to exercise great care as
attorney general that I neither say nor do anything which
vwould either predjudice or appear to predjudice the status
of Mr. Ebsary as an accused person before the court.

Did members of your department or yourself every ask the
RCHP not to investigate the original police officers who
did launch the investigation.

No. Unfortunately, the file that was releasedd about two
weeks ago at a press conference does not tell the whole
story. Bur for me to go into that now and to deal with
other confidential files would mean I'd have to open up to
public scrutiny, files' which I can't open up. So I'm
placed in an impossible situation. Allegations have been
made the only way that I could refute the allegations would
be to make public files that are completely confidential
and can't be made public.
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If Mr. Cameron is so wrong in his allegations why is it
that neither yourself nor Mr. MacLean has started any civil
action or a libel suit...

I fully intend to. Yes, and the first step in an action
for defamation of character is to retain counsel which I
have done, Kenneth Mathews Q.C., Truro, send a letter to
Mr. Cameron demanding a retraction and an apology. I think
it's only fair that we give Mr. Cameron a reasonable length
of time in which to respond to that. He has not, however
that is the first step in the action for defamataion for
character. The next step in the absence of a retraction
and an apology would be the issuing of a originating
notice, and statement of claim.

LERE™

If Mr. Cameron does come forward with evidence showing that
there was an investigation wouild you resign as Attorney
General in this case?

In a situation 1like this the person making the allegations
is the person who has to prove them. You will recall in the
case in New Brunswick, involving Mr. Higgins the leader of
the Liberal Party that he made allegations of this type,
and he was unable to substantiate them and he therefore
resigned his seat, but that burden is upon the person
making allegations. I'm not making any allegations against
Mr. Cameron. He's making allegations against me.

If he does prove them in a court of law , would you resign?

He's not going to be able to prove them because they are
totally false.



